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Welcome to Quadnetics

Quadnetics Group plc is a leader in the development, design, integration and
management of advanced surveillance technology and security networks.
We are a UK company listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London
Stock Exchange with 400 employees in the UK, the United States, the Middle East
and the Far East.
We operate in all of the leading surveillance markets: urban, offshore and adverse area (oil,
gas and chemical), casinos, military, banking, retail, transport (buses and trains) and prisons.
We are active in many high security programmes throughout the world.

 Innovating
	We develop specialist application software, control systems and surveillance products that support the
needs of our clients. We invest our research and development expertise in understanding our clients’
unique requirements and deliver innovative surveillance systems that satisfy the requirements to protect
their critical infrastructures today and in the future.

 Integrating
	Within the security industry, integration and what it means to offer an ‘integrated’ solution has evolved, as
available technologies and their applications have developed. Our award-winning SynergyTM command
and control system with its intuitive graphical user interface delivers true integration of multiple systems
including CCTV, intruder alarms, access control, fire alarms and process control. We aim to be at the
forefront of this innovation with our Synectics Technology Centre leading the way. We see integration as
more than a technical systems engineering task – we offer business integration to our clients covering
the full spectrum from consultancy, through systems design, installation, maintenance, support and
complete outsourced managed services.

 Protecting
	The safeguarding of people, property, cash and assets in critical infrastructure environments is our
core business.

Our vision is:

Our mission is:

To become a leading global supplier of integrated
surveillance and security systems which are a
fundamental part of our customers’ operations.

To become the trusted brand in our key global
market segments so that we become ‘first
choice providers’ of reliable and valuable security
management solutions.
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Our strategy is:
 To invest to grow our core of specialist
hardware and software-based proprietary
technology, adapted to the specialist needs
of our three principal target customer sectors:
mobile, oil & gas/marine, and critical security;
 To invest to expand sales globally into the key
markets for each of the three target sectors;
 To expand the scope of applications and
innovative services provided to these
customers so that we maximise recurring
revenues and market-share, and make it
increasingly difficult for generalist suppliers
to compete;
 To seek further bolt-on acquisitions to add
market share, specialist capabilities and/or
geographical position in our target sectors.
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Group Financial and
Operational Performance
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All data is based on unaudited proforma information for the twelve months ended
30 November in the respective year.
*2005 and 2006 measures of underlying profit and underlying earnings per share
are based on previously reported UK GAAP results whereas 2007, 2008, 2009 and
2010 are presented under adopted IFRS. There is no material difference between the
underlying UK GAAP and IFRS calculations. Underlying profit represents profit before
tax, exceptional reorganisation costs, goodwill amortisation or goodwill reduction and
share-based payments charge/(credit).
†Underlying earnings per Ordinary share is based on profit after tax but before
exceptional reorganisation costs, goodwill amortisation or goodwill reduction and
share-based payments charge/(credit).
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2010 Operating profit by Division (£m) † †
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1.9

 Network Systems

 Mobile Systems

 Industrial Systems		

 Underlying profit* before tax up 77% to
£2.6 million (2009: £1.5 million)

 Order book up 24% to £27.3 million
(2009: £22.1 million)

 Underlying EPS† up 92% to 12.5p (2009: 6.5p)

 Operational restructuring completed and
benefits starting to flow

 Recommended final dividend 4.5p per share
making 7.0p for the 12 month period to
30 November 2010 (2009: 7.0p)
 Profit before tax for the 18 month period
ended 30 November 2010: £1.2 million (12
months ended 31 May 2009: £0.5 million)
 Basic EPS for the 18 month period ended
30 November 2010: 5.5p (12 months ended
31 May 2009: 1.7p)
 Net cash at 30 November 2010: £3.3 million
(2009: £3.4 million)

 Three major new Synectics product launches
 Significant contract wins in banking, prisons
and oil & gas sectors
 Acquisition of defence joint venture partner
brings new surveillance product and
technology team
All figures quoted are unaudited proforma figures for the 12 month periods to
30 November 2010 and 30 November 2009 unless otherwise stated
**Revenue by division before deduction of intra-group sales
††Divisional operating profit before research & development and central costs

“It is pleasing to see the results of integrating and refocusing the business starting to
bear fruit. The significant profit improvement compared to the prior year has been
delivered in spite of a 5% reduction in sales. This is in line with our stated aims of striving
to increase both absolute profit and return on sales.”
John Shepherd, Chief Executive
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Chairman’s Statement
David Coghlan

Introduction
As previously announced, Quadnetics has
changed its year end from 31 May to
30 November, and the latest financial year
therefore covers the 18 months ended
30 November 2010. The accompanying
financial statements provide audited figures
for the full 18 month period, as well as
unaudited figures for the 12 months ended
30 November 2010. Comparable unaudited
figures are provided for the 12 months ended
30 November 2009. Unless otherwise stated,
this narrative report refers to figures for the
12 months to 30 November 2010, comparing
them with those for the same period in 2009.

XXSolid progress
XXImproved results
XXImproved order book

Quadnetics demonstrated solid progress on
most fronts during 2009/10. Results improved
markedly and, as importantly, there are clear
signs that the Group is benefitting from the
major organisation changes implemented
across the period.
Results
In the 12 months to 30 November 2010,
Quadnetics recorded underlying profit (that is,
profit before tax, exceptional costs and
share-based payment costs) up 77% to
£2.6 million (2009: £1.5 million), on revenue of
£61.3 million (2009: £64.7 million). Underlying
operating margin was 4.2% (2009: 2.0%). This
major improvement in operating margin
reflects primarily the initial benefits from
implementation of the Group restructuring
initiated last year, and a significant turnaround
within the defence activities of the Synectics
Mobile Systems division. Further details on
operating performance are set out in the
Business Review on pages 8 to 23.
Group profit before tax was £1.4 million
(2009: loss £(0.2) million), after charging
final exceptional costs of £1.1 million
(2009: £1.6 million) arising from the
restructuring, and share-based payment
costs of £0.2 million (2009: £0.1 million).
Underlying earnings per share increased by
92% to 12.5p (2009: 6.5p).
Quadnetics’ balance sheet remains ungeared,
with net cash at 30 November 2010 of
£3.3 million (2009: £3.4 million). Free cash flow,
that is cash generated from operations less
capital expenditure, was £2.1 million
(2009: £1.0 million outflow), before cash
payments in respect of exceptional restructuring
charges of £1.5 million (2009: £1.1 million).

For the 18 month period ended 30 November
2010 profit before tax was £1.2 million
(12 months ended 31 May 2009: £0.5 million)
and basic earnings per share were 5.5p
(12 months ended 31 May 2009: 1.7p).
Dividend
The Board is recommending a final dividend of
4.5p (2009: 4.5p) payable on 9 May 2011 to
shareholders on the register on 18 March 2011.
If approved by shareholders, this would bring
the total dividend for the final 12 months of the
period to 7.0p (2009: 7.0p).
Research and Development
Group expenditure on technology development
during the 12 month period totalled £1.4 million
(2009: £1.6 million). Of this, £0.7 million was
capitalised, and the remaining £0.7 million
expensed to the profit and loss account.
The creation during the year of the Synectics
Technology Centre as a separate development
unit for the Group as a whole has allowed a
more organised and scalable approach to
development priorities. Clear benefits to
schedule and cost adherence are already
being achieved.
Three major new Synectics products were
launched during the period:
XXCOEX3000, a new, market-leading

explosion-rated camera head for use in
hazardous environments such as oil rigs;
XXSimplicity, a high-reliability, top-of-the-

range hybrid digital video recorder which
will become a central component in
Synectics’ surveillance systems for multi-site
applications; and
XXChili, a suite of man-portable radio

frequency surveillance systems for mobile
defence applications.
People
During the year Russ Singleton, founder of
Synectics and Chief Executive of Quadnetics
from 2002 to 2008, left the Board to focus his
entrepreneurial flair on a new venture.
Quadnetics owes him a debt of gratitude for the
critical role he played in building the Company.
We miss his unique talents and insight, and wish
him every success for the future.
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Over 1 billion passenger miles
protected each year
Delivering Security in Motion

Throughout the recent period of restructuring,
Quadnetics’ employees have shown time and
again their commitment to meeting customer
expectations, solving problems and simply
getting things done. I would like to record the
Board’s sincere thanks to all of them.
Strategy and Financial Objectives
In our last interim report, I set out on behalf of
the Board a summary of the Group’s strategy
and medium term operating profitability
objectives. I propose now to repeat that
summary in a slightly updated version for this
full Annual Report.
Quadnetics’ strategy is to invest to grow our
technology base and market share in three security
and surveillance end markets with complex or
highly critical needs: critical infrastructure, mobile
surveillance and oil & gas/marine. The specialist
requirements of these market niches will enable
us increasingly to exploit and expand the
differentiation of our systems solutions from
competitor product offerings developed for
higher volume applications.
These three markets are regional or global in
scope and are specifically addressed by our
three Synectics divisions: Synectics Network
Systems, Synectics Mobile Systems and
Synectics Industrial Systems respectively. We
believe that each of these divisions has good
revenue growth opportunities and is capable of
reaching and sustaining operating profit

margins in the mid-to-high teens per cent
(before R&D and Group central costs).
The Integration and Managed Services division
is complementary to the three Synectics
divisions though different in its scope and
business characteristics. Its core skills are in
security systems integration, project
management and engineering services. It is
people-intensive and operates in a UK national,
or sometimes even local, competitive arena. Its
primary target market is medium-to-large scale
critical infrastructure security projects in the UK
and, as such, we believe it can increasingly
benefit from, and contribute to, the success of
the Synectics divisions’ solutions in that market.
Given the high bought-in content of sales in
this division, we believe a sustainable target
operating profit margin is in the range of 6-8%
(before Group central costs).
Each of our divisions has, and will continue to
have, profitable sales outside the Group’s core
target markets. Currently these sales amount in
total to around 15-20% of Group revenues, the
majority in the Integrated and Managed
Services division. Our expectation is that the
proportion of such ancillary sales within the
Group will reduce over time as growth efforts
and investment are directed towards the higher
margin target market niches.
Progress towards the Group’s objectives should
flow in part from continuing the closer

integration and focus of our overall business,
including management and administration,
technology development and co-operation
between divisions. A lot of good work has been
done in the past 18 months in creating the
current divisions and moving them collectively
much more to a “single company” culture. In
addition to providing a more efficient and
scalable organisation, this platform will also
allow the Group to manage bolt-on acquisitions
effectively, as and when we find the right
opportunities in line with our strategy.
We believe that, Quadnetics can and will progress
towards delivering consolidated underlying
operating profit margins (after all R&D and central
costs) in the range of 8-10%, within a reasonable
time frame and given normal economic
conditions. Of course, any action to improve the
operating profit margin will only be taken if it is
also consistent with Group’s overriding financial
objectives, the most important of which is
sustainable growth in earnings per share.
Outlook
As the Group continues to emerge from the
recent organisational changes, progress against
our objectives in the current year is broadly
on track.
The Group’s order book at 30 November 2010
was £27.3 million, up from £22.1 million a year
earlier. The delivery timetable for these orders
suggests a more even spread of work across this
year, in contrast to last year when profits were
heavily skewed to the first half. On the basis of
the improved year end order book, and an
encouraging pipeline of potential new business,
the Board expects Quadnetics to make further
good progress in the current financial year.

David Coghlan
Chairman
4 March 2011

Pictured: SynergyTM Security Management Software Installation.
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Divisions at a glance
Integration & Managed Services

Network Systems

This Division brings together world-class Integration and Facilities
Management (FM) services to deliver complex solutions across markets
that have a high dependence on security. Our market-leading positions
in high security, public space and retail are supported by strong
development in the commercial and finance sectors. This success has
been achieved through our constant focus on identifying and exceeding
extremely stringent customer requirements that are often influenced by
a legislative imperative.

Synectics Network Systems is a global provider of advanced surveillance
system control and management solutions for a range of vertical markets
and security applications. The systems utilise analogue, IP and hybrid
technologies, our SynergyTM award-winning security management
platform and enterprise class recording and storage systems, providing
bespoke, high-integrity surveillance systems.

Our main market sectors include:

Our main market sectors include:






 Banking
 Gaming

Government
High Security
Banking
Public space

 Emergency services
 Retail
 Utilities

 High Security
 Government

Our customers include:

End-user customers include:

 	HM Prison Service  Over 100 UK local authorities
 Police
 Ministry of Justice
 Goldman Sachs
 WH Smith
 Argos

 Salford City
Council
 Transport for
London

Market Drivers

Market Drivers

Our integration capability supports a range of businesses with security
systems whose failure would be critical. The key drivers for our customers
to procure our services are external threats ranging from crime, terrorist
activity, internal fraud, and the need to adhere to and manage processes
governed by legislation.

The global market for Network Systems remains attractive due to advances
in technology and increasing security risks across the globe both of which
continue to fuel demand for our products.

Our award winning* managed services business principally provides services
to multi–site businesses, mainly in the retail sector, who in challenging
economic times, require us to provide service improvements through
management of subcontractors and assets, thereby reducing overheads and
providing certainty on costs and service levels. This enables them to adopt
a leaner organisational structure and allows them to focus on their core
business. Increasingly they require enhanced management information and
pro-active innovation.
*Partners in FM (SME) award for 2010.

 Thames Barrier
 Durban Metro
City Centre

 Penn Gaming
 Ontario Lottery
and Gaming
Commission

More specifically, an increasing demand to replace ageing and obsolete
analogue security systems with the latest digital and IP technologies and the
convergence of all business services onto single IP network infrastructures is
accelerating the need for IP video and security management solutions.
There is also an increasing demand for the protection of Critical National
Infrastructure sites such as utility installations, government facilities,
pipelines and transport hubs.
New growth markets are emerging where surveillance systems are used to
generate revenue for our clients, for example using Automatic Number Plate
Recognition (“ANPR”).
We have the skills, technology and experience to take advantage of these
trends.
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Industrial Systems

Synectics Mobile Systems is a leading supplier and service provider of
mobile digital CCTV systems for transport applications including bus,
coach and rail. We have over 20 years experience in the development,
installation and maintenance of over 20,000 CCTV systems for major
transport operators.

Synectics Industrial Systems is a world leader with over 20 years of
experience in integrated CCTV systems for oil, gas, marine and hazardous
environments, as well as industrial and petrochemical applications,
where environments dictate the need for exceptionally robust solutions.

Our main market sectors include:

Our main market sectors include:

 Bus
 Emergency services
 Coach

 Refineries and
terminals
 Pipelines and
storage
 Drilling rigs

©Terminale GNL Adriatico S.r.l.

Mobile Systems

 Cash in Transit
 Rail
 Defence

Alexander Dennis
Alstom
Bus Eireann
Delgro Metroline
Docklands Light
Railway

 East London Bus
Group
 Ministries of
Defence
 Nexus
 Scania

 Steel
 Chemical
processing
 Cement

Our customers include:

Our customers include:






 LNG and LPG
tankers
 Oil tankers
 Cargo vessels

 South Yorkshire
Fire & Rescue
 Stagecoach
 Transdev
 Wrightbus







Page Europa
Thales Group
Cegelec
Petrofac
SNEF






Alcatel
Daewoo
HHI
Schlumberger Oil UK

Market Drivers

Market Drivers

There has been a major shift in the market drivers for mobile CCTV. There
is now far more emphasis on reliability, insurance mitigation and return on
investment. We are seeing more demand from local and central government
for public transport operators to ensure that their CCTV systems are both
reliable and deliver much higher picture quality and performance. With our
T1000 being ‘best in class’ for mobile Digital Video Recorder (DVR) systems,
and our ability to deliver 98% up time maintenance contracts, Synectics
Mobile Systems is benefiting from this shift in market focus.

The sector continues to grow, with systems requiring greater camera
counts, because of the perceived increasing security threat to our end-user
customers’ businesses. Project visibility tends to be good because of the
long duration of projects to build oil & gas facilities.

With the successful launch of ‘Genius’ our advanced driver training and
vehicle reporting system, we have addressed and combined our clients’
demands for ‘greener’ systems that lower fuel consumption and reduce
vehicle incidents but that also satisfy the need to improve the comfort and
quality of the overall passenger experience.
Despite the defence spending review, our defence team is seeing an
increased demand for electronic surveillance systems and is well placed to
further support this with the release of our new radio frequency detection
system, Chili.

In the past the provision of CCTV systems has been made through mediumsized specialist oil & gas telecoms integrators but, increasingly over the last
few years, major international companies, such as Siemens, Alcatel, Thales,
General Dynamics, and ABB have come to the fore in a sector which is truly
global.
We also anticipate that the changes in the international power-base which
are already noticeable will probably accelerate quickly in the next few years,
with Chinese and Russian companies becoming active in many geographic
areas.
There is significant demand in the sector for the ‘added value’ complete
solutions offered by Synectics including our SynergyTM software based
applications, and we are continuing to develop our products and systems,
including the introduction of High Definition and wireless technology.
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Business Review
John Shepherd, Chief Executive & Nigel Poultney, Finance Director

2010 Overview
Despite the continuing difficult economic
conditions we have made significant
improvements in performance across the
Group over the last 18 and especially the last
12 months. The infusion of new management
talent and significant reorganisation of the
business into four specific market focused
Divisions is taking positive effect and delivering
results which are on track with our stated aim of
achieving 8-10% operating profit margins (after
all R&D and central costs) overall.

Financial KPI’s
2010
unaudited

2009
unaudited

Revenue (£ million)

61.3

64.7

(3.4)

Gross margin %

32.2%

30.5%

1.7%

2.6

1.3

KPI’s Measure

Underlying operating profit (£ million)

inc/(dec) inc/(dec)%
(5%)
6%

1.3

95%

1.1

77%

83%

operating profit before share-based payments and exceptional reorganisation costs

Underlying profit before tax (£ million)

2.6

1.5

profit before tax, share-based payments and exceptional reorganisation costs

Operating margin %

4.2%

2.3%

1.9%

6.4

(1.6)

8.0

12.5

6.5

6.0

92%

Order book (£ million)

27.3

22.1

5.2

24%

Recurring revenue (£ million)

15.9

17.2

(1.3)

(8%)

The significant profit improvement compared
to the prior year has been delivered in spite of a
5% reduction in sales. As we continue to focus
on selling higher margin integrated systems in
our chosen niche markets, we expect this trend
to continue. The significantly reduced overhead
cost means that we will be able to take
advantage of improving global market
conditions to deliver higher profit margins. In
our July statement I promised that we would
increase our pace of innovation and this has
resulted in the launch of the three new market
leading product families outlined in the
Chairman’s Statement and detailed in this
Business Review. The establishment of our
Synectics Group Technology Centre at our
Sheffield facility will enable us to develop more
common-core hardware and software products
which we can exploit in many different market
opportunities. The improving order book
position gives confidence for further improved
performance in 2011.

ratio on underlying profit to revenue

Integration & Managed Services
Earnings per share (p)
Underlying earnings per share (p)
based on underlying profit after tax

contracted sales where a service is delivered over a future time period, and revenues are recognised in the
relevant future accounting periods

Free cash flow (£ million)
Cash conversion %

2.1

(1.0)

3.1

84.1%

(77.6%)

161.7%

Quadnetics’ IMS division is one of the leading
UK providers of design, integration, turnkey
supply, monitoring and management of
large-scale electronic security systems. Its main
markets are in critical infrastructure, public
space and multi-site systems. Its capabilities
include a nationwide network of service
engineers, UK Government security-cleared
personnel and facilities, and an in-house
24-hour monitoring centre and help desk. The
IMS division supplies proprietary products and
technology from other Quadnetics divisions as
well as from third parties.
Revenue	£32.0 million
(2009: £38.0 million)

Gross Margin
24.0% (2009: 24.2%)
Operating Profit*	£1.3 million 
(2009: £2.3 million)

Operating Margin

4.2% (2009: 5.9%)
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Protecting 4 of the 5 largest city centres and
over half of all London Borough councils
Protecting Civil and Commercial
Infrastructure and Assets Worldwide

Major Project Wins
Contract value
UK Bank
£1.3m
Major rail security upgrade
£1.0m
High security hospital system
£1.3m
Power station security contract
£2.0m
HMP category A prison
£1.0m
MOJ multi-site security project
£1.3m
In the 12 months to 30 November 2010,
revenue declined by 16% to £32 million. This
was primarily due to the continuing planned
transition of the managed services activities
towards fee-for-service and away from the
direct sale of third party systems and
components and, to a lesser extent, to the exit
of the division from activities outside the UK.
Important contract wins in the period included
the first phase of security upgrades for a major
new UK bank customer, using Synectics’
Simplicity hybrid digital video recorder, as well
as orders for an increasing number of UK
prisons and Young Offenders’ Institutions under
the Home Office framework agreement won by
Quadrant Security Group last financial year.
The IMS division has made a number of new
senior management appointments, and we
believe is now better positioned to bid for and
win larger-scale contracts. It continues to work
more closely with other Quadnetics divisions to
exploit operating and marketing synergies from
increased focus on our core Group target
markets. The IMS division remains an important
outlet for Synectics’ products and systems.
The IMS division suffered considerable
disruption during the period from the Group
restructuring, involving the consolidation of
operational and overhead functions between
sites, and consequent significant staff
redundancies. The benefits of the restructuring
should become more apparent during 2011.
The current financial year has begun positively
for this division, in line with plan. However, the
full benefit of the significant changes
implemented last year will take time to come

Pictured: Meeting the challenges of public space security.

through, and we do not expect IMS to report
meaningful margin improvement or growth
until the 2011/12 financial year.
Market Trends
The period of the last 18 months has been
challenging for this UK focussed Division as the
UK experienced a deep recession. This has had a
severe impact on the whole economy including
public sector education, health and local
authorities and in the commercial world,
banking, transport and the construction market.
The UK security market has suffered in line with
other markets and has contracted in size and is
not expected to return to 2008 levels until
2013/14.
The Division has had some notable successes in
those parts of its addressable market which
have been more resilient especially Critical
Infrastructure and High Security surveillance.

Public Space
In the early part of the period the public space
team bucked the overall market trend and
maintained good order intake levels. This was
primarily due to committed budgets before the
full impact of the recession was felt and legacy
systems requiring reinvestment.
A change in government in May 2010 and the
announcement of planned public sector
spending cuts of up to 40% meant that in the
latter half of the period, traditional business was
trending down due to projects being put on
hold or cancelled.
The Government’s comprehensive spending
review (CSR) presents both an opportunity and
a threat. Local authorities are conducting their
own strategic reviews of essential spend to
determine which services need to be reduced.
CCTV is classified as a discretionary spend and
as such is a target for cost cutting. To counter
these threats we are building on our strong
credentials in the public sector to deliver
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Business Review
continued

innovative solutions that will show immediate
savings and long term benefits by utilising our
proprietary technology to enable local
authorities to easily consolidate multiple control
rooms to save cost. We are also developing
revenue generating capabilities which will help
to defray the cost of operation.

The general commercial arena saw construction
all but come to a halt but we have little
dependency on construction and therefore the
impact was small. The Commercial sector is
recovering and is a target for re-investment and
key account management along with a further
focus on Transport and Utilities.

Commercial
The banking sector suffered a major downsizing with redundancies and building closures
experienced in the early part of the period. The
impact of this was offset by the service
contracts in place with key accounts which
remained steady throughout the period.
Towards the latter end of the period the sector
started to recover rapidly and re-investment is
now starting to happen. At the end of the
reporting period, we were very pleased to win a
branch refurbishment contract with a major UK
High Street bank which uses our own
proprietary technology. This trend is forecast to
continue and we see this sector as a key growth
area for 2011 and beyond.

High Security
The high security sector is still a high priority for
Government and commercial customers and
therefore spend levels have remained
consistent. The sector is serviced by a more
limited number of specialist companies where
we are recognised as one of the leaders. It is a
project-driven sector where the scale of
projects tends to be large and long term.
Despite a significant budget cut of 24% in the
CSR – security remains a key driver and the
pipeline is strong. In order to grow our market
share, we are both extending our capability into
Life Safety Systems with a number of
opportunities in the pipeline, and focusing on
new opportunities in the private sector. We

expect this sector to grow modestly in the UK
by 1 or 2% per annum.
Future Trends
The trend to IP (i.e. all-digital) solutions creates
additional opportunities for the convergence of
security service technologies and allows the
broadening of our market proposition into IT
and Communications. Advances in technology
mean that many installations are out of date
and so present a replacement opportunity and
the potential to sell ‘technology future proofing’
through managed services delivering long term
revenues and profits.
The ability to store and retrieve large amounts
of data quickly and accurately is becoming an
essential requirement. This opens up an
opportunity for delivering security as a service
– something which is well within our
capabilities.

PFM Awards — Partners in FM (SME)
SSS Management Services, part of the IMS
Division, along with WH Smith, Capitol Group
and Challenger Lighting, was presented with the
prestigious Partners in FM (SME) award for 2010.
The PFM Awards recognise the most effective
partnering relationships within a facilities
management context.
SSS Management Services works with WH Smith to
deliver a help desk and contractor management
service for maintenance and security services to
over 1,000 stores around the UK. The judges
recognised the significant investment made by
WH Smith, SSS Management Services and
suppliers, Capitol Group and Challenger Lighting in
re-engineering and delivering the service for the
WH Smith stores.
“We are delighted that our partnership has been
recognised by the facilities management industry”,
commented Paul Burchfield, Managing Director,
SSS Management Services Ltd. “This was an
opportunity for our team to demonstrate the
commitment we all make to continually improve the
service we offer to the WH Smith stores”.
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Over 30,000 cameras in 55 casino
environments
Protecting Civil and Commercial
Infrastructure and Assets Worldwide

Synectics Network Systems
The SNS Division provides specialist videobased electronic surveillance systems and
technology globally to end customers with
large scale high security requirements,
particularly for critical infrastructure protection.
It is co-located in our Sheffield facility with the
Synectics Technology Centre, which provides
R&D, products and systems expertise to each of
the other divisions.
Revenue	£12.7 million
(2009: £10.7 million)

Gross Margin
45.5% (2009: 47.5%)
Operating Profit*	£1.9 million
(2009: £1.5 million)

Operating Margin

15.3% (2009: 14.4%)
Pictured: Delivering control room environments for the Gaming sector.

Major Project Wins
Contract value
Sandwell Homes
£0.4m
Major UK Retail Store
£0.4m
UK Bank
£0.4m
Stratosphere Casino
£0.9m
Oneida Casino
£0.8m
Ontario Lottery and Gaming
£1.9m
Penn Casinos
£0.8m

Synectics Network Systems’ revenue for the year
rose by 18% to £12.7 million, on which the
division increased its operating margin to just
over 15%. The primary source of growth was
the North American gaming market, which had
been significantly affected by the recession but
recovered well during 2010.
The re-organisation of Quadnetics’ activities in
the Middle East under this division, and
increased resource dedicated to the region,
held back the division’s profits in the period.
This is an important market for Quadnetics, and
the increased investment is expected to bear
fruit in the current financial year.
The Group’s research and development
capabilities, many of them from within
Synectics Networks, were consolidated during
the year into a separate organisation unit,

allowing SNS to concentrate on efficient
delivery of systems and products, and on
servicing customer needs.
Synectics continues to win projects and deliver
systems for protecting important high security
assets around the world, including the London
Borough of Lambeth, Durban City (World Cup),
the Stratosphere Las Vegas Casino, the Atlantis
Hotel Dubai, and a major UK bank. Further
growth is expected in the current financial year.
Market Trends
UK and Europe
Due to the recession, trading in the UK has
been tough in 2010. Public space has been
particularly difficult and we expect this to
continue into 2011.
Critical National Infrastructure (CNI) protection
is still a high priority for government spending
around the world for example the UK National
Grid and therefore is seen as an area for
significant growth in 2011 and beyond. We
have seen opportunities in this niche increasing
particularly towards the end of this year.

The banking sector was also very slow for most
of the reporting period but this business is also
starting to come back and the timely launch of
our new Simplicity hybrid network video
recorder has enabled a significant contract win
for a major High Street bank in the final month.
European expansion is progressing with agents
appointed in France, Italy and Belgium.
Middle East
Middle East improvements are largely
completed; the cost base has been significantly
reduced, legacy contracts are very close to
completion and the pipeline supports an
improved performance in this region. It was
pleasing to win a contract for CCTV systems in
the Dubai Atlantis Hotel in the final month of
the year.
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USA
In the USA, similar recessionary trends drove the
gaming market into a two year slump.
Revenues from casinos large and small,
corporate and Native American are still
significantly down from the high watermarks of
2007. Though patron counts are returning to
“near normal”, average spend per visitor remains
substantially lower. The result has been
diminished budgets for existing casino
conversions and delayed capital expenditures
for expansions and new builds.
Tight capital markets led to several new
projects being postponed or cancelled. The few
fortunate exceptions were driven by revenuestrapped states that approved gaming and/or
table games for the first time. Pennsylvania,
Maryland, West Virginia and Ohio issued several
new casino licenses and our clients won much
of the new work which, even though sourcing
delays on some key components forced us to
delay over $1 million of sales into the new fiscal
year, has enabled a significantly better
performance from our US operation in the final
six months of the reporting period.
Casinos still buy our systems because of our
Synergy software suite, competitive prices and
end-to-end system accountability. They like the
ease of use, reliability and minimal
maintenance. We are considered one of the top
five system providers in the gaming vertical
(Pelco, Honeywell, NICE, Cisco). Integration of
third party systems and our pioneering
“Dataveillance” concept (see Stratosphere case
study) remain key sales drivers.

Stratosphere Casino
Providing a custom built
surveillance system
Synectics Networks Systems has delivered its
first Las Vegas project at the Stratosphere.
Synectics was selected by Stratosphere Casino in Las
Vegas to provide a custom surveillance system
powered by Synergy™ – video management
software. This was the first Synectics system to be
installed in a major Las Vegas property although the
Networks division has already installed over 50
gaming installations throughout North America and
Canada. Synectics’ digital recording solution, with its
proven track record of 99.999% uptime, provides
around-the-clock surveillance of the 80,000 square
foot casino, which features more than 50 game
tables, 1,200 slot and video poker machines, a poker
room, and race and sports book betting.
Synectics participated in an extensive product
testing process and was ultimately selected by the
Stratosphere Casino based on its flexible digital
recording system that allows for existing and future
technology integrations and complies with Nevada
gaming regulations.
Working with integrator/installer Technical Security
Integration (TSI), Synectics has upgraded
Stratosphere to a digital recording system with
custom integration to a new Pelco matrix and the
casino’s point-of-sale, access control, and slot
management systems. Integration of video to third
party systems through Synergy will eventually
include Dataveillance tools to mine and correlate
alarm and transactional data to identify suspicious
behaviour patterns, fraudulent activities, slot
performance, marketing trends, etc. This
information, when tied to video, can be used
effectively to enhance the overall efficiency,
security and profitability of the casino.
“Synectics’ solution offers us advanced integrations
and high quality video recording with a simple user
interface. For our highly demanding environment,
Synectics offers the best product, integrator and
service warranty to back it up”.
Jerry McCawley,
Corporate Vice President of Surveillance
American Casino & Entertainment Properties, LLC
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Synectics Mobile Systems
Synectics Mobile Systems provides specialist
ruggedised surveillance systems and products
for transport and defence customers.
Revenue

£11.9 million

Gross Margin
Operating Profit*

35.0% (2009: 27.6%)
£1.2 million

Operating Margin

10.1% (2009: 1.1%)

(2009: £12.1 million)

(2009: £0.1 million)

Major Project Wins
Stagecoach
Metroline
UK MoD

Contract value
£3.7m
£0.7m
£1.2m

Revenue in the 12 month period was slightly
down at £11.9 million (2009: £12.1 million) but
operating profit was substantially ahead at
£1.2 million (2009: £0.1 million). Both the lower
sales and increased profit were principally due
to restructuring of the defence business, which
became profitable in the period after two
loss-making years.
While the degree of progress which the mobile
systems division makes in 2011 will in part be a
function of the timing of recovery in the UK
new bus market, we nevertheless expect the
division to deliver continued improvement in
performance for the year.
Market Trends
Transport
The past 18 months has seen a major shift in
the market drivers for mobile CCTV. There is
now far more emphasis on reliability, insurance
mitigation and return on investment. Public
transport operators are seeing more demand
from local and central government to ensure
that their CCTV systems are both reliable and
deliver much higher picture quality and
performance. With the T1000 being ‘best in
class’ for mobile DVR systems, and our ability to
deliver 98% up time maintenance contracts,
Synectics Mobile Systems is benefiting from this
shift in market focus.
With the successful launch of ‘Genius’, our
advanced driver training and vehicle reporting
system, we have addressed and combined our
clients’ demands for ‘greener’ systems which
lower fuel consumption and reduce vehicle

 Protecting

incidents. The resulting improvement in driver
performance also meets the need to improve
the comfort and quality of the overall passenger
experience.
Defence
We have seen ongoing demand for our Long
Range Series of cameras in the defence division.
We are now seeing an increased demand for
electronic surveillance systems and are well
placed to further support this market with a
new product release, Chili, in early 2011. Chili is
based on technology that is already ‘in theatre’,
but it is smaller and much more user friendly.
Synectics has a good reputation in this market,
both in the UK and internationally and despite
the defence spending review we are in a good
position to grow as these systems are still in
high demand globally.
Transport Review
The UK bus market remained somewhat
subdued, as operators delayed orders for
replacement new vehicles. We believe this
trend is unlikely to continue, since additional
running costs for extending the life of older
vehicles soon become uneconomic. Similarly,
light rail projects in the UK have been subject to
extended sales cycles. Synectics Mobile Systems
won its first contract for a bus/rail surveillance
system in Germany, which is likely to become a
large market for mobile CCTV.
Despite the recession and consequent mixed
market conditions of the last 18 months,
Synectics Mobile Systems has retained its
position as one of the UK’s leading suppliers,
integrators and service support specialists to
the transport market.
Ongoing investment in new proprietary
technologies such as the T1000 mobile digital
recorder and the ‘Genius’ Journey Data
Management System (JDMS) are enabling us to
build new revenue streams whilst at the same
time protecting and growing our client base.
Our extensive national service support network
continues to grow and diversify into specialist
support of vehicle manufacturers, support of
major initiatives such as the London iBus
project (a state-of-the-art Automatic Vehicle
Location, radio and an on-bus passenger
information display and announcement system
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for every bus and garage across London) and
the installation of electronic external advertising
systems for public service vehicles.
Another first in this period has been the sale of
a large number of systems to the public service
vehicle manufacturers in Europe, in line with
the Group’s plans for European market growth.
The operational highlights of the last 18 months
include:
XX£3.7 million, 3 year deal with Stagecoach plc

for the provision and installation of digital
CCTV to all new Public Service Vehicles –
this innovative deal continues our
exclusivity with the customer.
XXIntroduction and deployment of T1000,

Synectics high performance mobile digital
recorder – we have now provided over
1,200 units to both bus and rail customers.
XXIntroduction and deployment of the ‘Genius’

JDMS – over 1,600 deployments to date and
a strong order book beginning to develop
(more than 2,600 ordered) as customers
recognise the system’s benefits such as:
– Enhanced passenger experience due to
improved driver performance
– Reduction in accidents due to improved
driver performance
– Significant fuel savings
– Significantly reduced maintenance costs
XXIncreased recurring revenues from

innovative service support packages – long
term service support contracts for
preventative maintenance have increased to
over 6,000 vehicles, providing a strong
recurring income.
XXConsolidation of some rail and bus

businesses, leading to additional sales into
the light rail and London Underground.
XXSignificant wins in the cash in transit sector.

Defence Review
In order to return this business to profitability
after two loss making years, the period started
with a major refocus and restructuring
programme. This involved significant
headcount reductions, moving production to
our Group facility at Brigg in Lincolnshire and
relocating the Tewkesbury base to more
suitable premises.
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Just following the year end, Synectics acquired
Persides, its joint venture partner in developing
the Chili radio frequency surveillance suite of
products just launched. Persides brings with it a
small and highly capable technical team who
should contribute significantly to the growth of
this specialist area within the Group.
We are now concentrating on three
complementary product families:
XXLong Range Electro Optics
XXVehicle Situational Awareness (extremely

Synectics partnered with Persides Technology
Limited to design the core architecture for Chili.
The success of this partnership and the clear
synergy between Synectics and Persides led
Synectics to purchase Persides Technology Ltd
in December 2010. This acquisition, and the
state of the art Digital Signal Processor (DSP)
technology that is now available to us, puts the
Defence business in a strong position to
compete for some of the new emerging
technology requirements that we are now
seeing both in the vehicle situational awareness
and radio surveillance markets.

This acquisition has also seen the introduction
of a fourth product into our defence portfolio
– VeeCam – a body worn video recorder. This
market-leading product is extremely rugged,
being the only body worn recorder that is fully
qualified to work 100m underwater and fully
encrypted to allow for operation by Police and
other security users. We expect significant sales
of this product in 2011.

rugged CCTV systems)
XXRadio Surveillance

Over the last 18 months we have had success in
all of these markets with some highlights being:

Technology in motion
Working for Metroline

XX£1 million contract with UK MoD for radio

surveillance equipment
XXSuccessful delivery of another batch of

Insight 360 digital video recorders into the
UK MoD with over 100 systems now in
active service
XXOngoing supply of long range optical

surveillance systems and support to
UK MoD
Moving production to Brigg has also achieved a
major improvement in product quality and
consequently customer satisfaction.
The renewed focus and improvements to our
design processes has allowed us to better
compete in the quasi-military security market.
We won contracts to supply a video
surveillance system for Heathrow Airport and
other systems for foreign security agencies.
Over the period Synectics Defence has been
investing in the design of a new radio
surveillance product – Chili. This new product,
being launched early 2011, will be the most
powerful, smallest man portable electronic
warfare system in the world. It is one twentieth
the weight and uses one twentieth of the
power of the equivalent system in service
today.

Metroline Limited is the UK arm of Comfort
Delgro, the second largest land transport
company in the world. It is one of London’s
largest public bus operators and provides 13%
of the London bus network under contract to
Transport for London. Metroline has over 1,200
buses operating in North London and have
been clients of Synectics Mobile Systems since
CCTV was first introduced on its buses in 2003.
Metroline approached Synectics’ specialist Mobile
Systems division looking for a solution that would
help them achieve an improvement in driving
standards across its fleet, support an improvement
in the overall passenger experience and offer
efficiencies in operating costs.
We introduced Metroline to our Journey Data
Management System (JDMS). The JDMS was
considered alongside other competing Telematics
products and Synectics successfully secured the
contract to trial the system in 200 Metroline buses.
The Synectics JDMS system realises all the required
elements — a positive overall impact on
operational performance and a reduction in fuel
usage and vehicle maintenance costs. The
passenger experience was also identified as a key
area for improvement. The system also provides
evidence to support passenger claims, resulting
from poor driver performance.
Both Synectics Mobile Systems and Metroline
assembled dedicated project teams to deliver the
trial. All aspects of the project were considered
from driver and engineer engagement. This
included promoting the benefits of the system to
all Metroline drivers and encouraging them to log
on and check their own results, to training the
engineers who operate the buses in the garage on
the system and its bespoke journey management
reports. Metroline has introduced a reward and

recognition scheme for its ‘best’ performing drivers
to encourage recognition of the JDMS effect.
Metroline has enjoyed a close working relationship
with Synectics and know they can rely on
Synectics’ expertise to deliver a solution that works
to their specific requirements. Our approach to
relationship building and our ability to combine
the system with onboard CCTV and other systems
developing a total ‘black box’ solution, were unique
capabilities that differentiated Synectics and
secured the preferred partner status.
“Metroline selected Synectics based on the right
product, the right price and the right approach to
working with us to engage our drivers and engineers.
They understand the benefits of the system to our
passengers, our employees and our business.
There are other systems on the market that have the
same features and deliver similar benefits, but I was
looking for a company which could not only provide
the technical expertise, but also work alongside us to
develop a solution for Metroline that supports our
strategic business goals. “
Neil Colsten,
Head of Recruitment and Training
Metroline
Since the formal introduction of JDMS in June
2010, the overall standard of driving has risen
among the drivers of those vehicles fitted. In
addition, the system has renewed a sense of
professionalism and pride, injecting a healthy
competitive spirit to deliver a safer service to the
travelling public.
If the trial on the new buses continues to prove
successful, Synectics hopes to secure an order for
the entire Metroline fleet.
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At the heart of energy
infrastructure protection
Protecting Installations with All Major Oil and Gas
Companies Worldwide

Synectics Industrial Systems
Synectics Industrial Systems Division designs,
manufactures and supplies surveillance systems
for extreme or hazardous environments.
Applications include offshore and onshore oil &
gas facilities, ships and industrial process
control.
Revenue	£6.3 million
(2009: £6.5 million)

Gross Margin
33.3% (2009: 32.2%)
Operating Profit*	£0.7 million
(2009: £0.8 million)

Operating Margin

Pictured: Delivering innovative electronic systems for the Cliffhead Project, Australia.

11.9% (2009: 12.1%)

Major Project Wins
Kashagan (Thales)
El Merk (Page Europa)
Gorgon (Western Advance)

Contract value
£2.2m
£0.6m
£1.8m

SIS achieved results just slightly down from the
record revenues and profits of the previous
period. The division continued to make
progress on its objective to increase the
proportion of Synectics’ proprietary technology
in its systems sales.
Market Trends
The uncertain global economic climate caused
unusual trading patterns in the global oil & gas
industry and severe cutbacks in ship building.
As a consequence, apart from a flurry of
contract awards in Spring 2010, the market was
difficult for most of the 18 month period from
Summer 2009 right through 2010 – with many
projects and decisions being delayed especially
in the final six months of the reporting period.
However, this division still made significant
progress with major project wins like the
Gorgon LNG project referred to below. There
are signs that momentum is returning,
decisions are now being taken, projects are
proceeding and process control markets are
becoming addressable. Consequently we
expect a strong 2011.

Oil & Gas
The second half of 2009 was strengthened by
continuing packages of work on the Kashagan
project secured at the beginning of the period
– a project we started work on in 2006, and
which accounted for 20% of revenue during
this period, in 13 separate work packages. This
phase of the project will reach a conclusion in
2011 with commissioning support and spares
packages expected to be supplied.
We ended the period with the notable order for
Phase 1 of the £25 billion Gorgon offshore
natural gas project in Australia. This project,
including follow-on phases, is expected to
generate significant revenue for a number of
years. Our system will be engineered and
delivered in 2011. A complete Synectics
solution, this comprises COEX™ hazardous area
and safe area Tri-Mode PTZ thermal camera
stations, COEX™ MEPC DROME camera stations
– all of which will employ the COEX™ wash
systems, COEX™ MEDC camera stations,
SynergyProTM command and control system
and associated server and storage systems.

successful development and launch of its
new explosion-protected camera head, the
COEX 3000™, which has already won a major
order for the Jasmine North Sea Oil platform.
Service business was strong throughout the
period, with good margins – particularly the last
six months, as a number of major projects were
completed with our commissioning support.
This is expected to remain healthy into 2011.
Most of this is on an ad-hoc “as-required” basis,
rather than contracted recurring revenue – a
situation which is typical as the longer term on
site maintenance is usually undertaken locally
by the operator.
Marine
As previously reported, marine business
remained difficult to secure for the whole
period, and there is still no sign of this improving
until at least 2012. The marine sector is no
longer a significant one for the Division (around
5%), although it had been in 2007-8 when the
sector was buoyant.

The business has significantly increased its use
of proprietary technology during this period,
with most of the major projects delivered now
based on the SynergyProTM video management
system, as well as COEXTM camera stations. Of
particular importance, SIS completed the

* Divisional operating profit is stated before R&D and central costs.

15

16

Quadnetics Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

www.quadnetics.com
Stock code: QDG

Business Review
continued

Research and Development –
Synectics Technology Centre
During the course of 2010 within our Synectics
business, we created a centralised, dedicated
research and development team based at our
Sheffield facility known as Synectics Technology
Centre (STC). The team was largely created
from the Synectics Networks specific research
and development team with a remit to provide
a focused development resource to all four
Divisions. The goal is to ensure that products
and solutions are created to meet multiple
market place requirements rather than being
developed specifically for the needs of one
business unit. This allows the generation and
reuse of common core hardware and software
across the Group. Significant investment has
been made in STC to provide a more product
focussed rather than project development
approach. Additional resources have been put
in place in the Technical Authoring, Product
Management and Test teams as well as
establishing more formal Programme
Management methods to ensure development
projects are completed on specification, on
time and on budget. This revised structure is
already showing benefits to the products that
are released, with the recently launched
Simplicity product being fully market ready at
its deployment despite its very short
development time.
Simplicity Launch and Roll Out
In November 2010 we launched our new
Simplicity range of Network and Hybrid Digital
Video Recording appliances – a complete
surveillance solution in one box. These cost
effective 16 channel units are a timely addition
to the Synectics product family which enable
the sales teams to sell into wider markets and
channels which typically do not have a need or
budget for enterprise CCTV and storage
solutions. The Simplicity appliance has been
developed by using simplified versions of
existing Synectics hardware and software
products and housing them jointly in a
compact chassis. This approach enabled rapid
product development, and ensures
commonality of code as well as user experience
across Synectics products whether they are
from the Simplicity or Enterprise ranges. A
number of features that would normally be
restricted to Enterprise products have been

incorporated in Simplicity, including dual
network ports, automated discovery of Internet
Protocol (IP) cameras and out-of-the-box
compatibility with over 200 different IP cameras
from Standard Definition (SD) to High Definition
(HD) and Mega Pixel models. The launch of
Simplicity has been well received by internal
and external customers alike, with orders for
around 300 units received in its first month of
availability. Significant opportunities exist for
Simplicity to become a major contributor to
Synectics turnover across the globe especially
as the significantly reduced engineering
overhead for configuration and deployment
makes this a very affordable professional
surveillance solution.
Video Content Analysis
We have continued apace with integration of
market leading Object Video (OV) Analytics
algorithms into our product offering and in
2010 became the world’s first vendor to
implement an end to end “OV Ready” solution,
supporting video analytics in our e100i VCA
enabled H.264 encoder, all the way through to
having “OV Ready” support within our
SynergyProTM security management platform.
This end to end approach enables customers to
select either a full turnkey Synectics solution, or
to choose IP cameras with “OV Ready” support
and seamlessly connect them into a
SynergyProTM system.
To further extend the Video Content Analysis
(VCA) product portfolio we have also integrated
video normalisation algorithms into a
centralised “OV Ready” VCA Server. This enables
any Synectics compatible IP Video source (SD,
HD or Megapixel) to have high performance
VCA capabilities, and also allows a very simple
retrofit for VCA to be added to all existing
Synectics Modular Digital Recording System
(MDRS) and SynergyPro™ deployments with
zero equipment obsolescence.
To enable VCA for the mass market we will be
enabling “OV Ready” features onto all of our
Network and Hybrid Digital Video Recording
appliances in Q2 2011. Basic analytic function
will be included as standard, along with
licensed extended analytic functions.

Open Standards
Quadnetics has always prided itself on
providing open systems. This ethos continues
and we have completed integration to over 200
camera models from market leading vendors,
and other specialist niche market suppliers. For
each model integrated we ensure that we are
able to manage the video from cradle to
evidential grave via our normalisation model
meaning, regardless of vendor, all cameras can
be viewed, recorded, managed, controlled and
video exported from our systems
Our commitment to open standards has been
further expanded and in 2010 we were the first
Security Management System Vendor to show
integration with the industry standard Physical
Security Interoperability Alliance (PSIA) IP Media
Device specification allowing off the shelf
support for any PSIA compliant camera device.
Our commitment to PSIA was further
demonstrated when we became the first
vendor to enable host system capabilities for
the PSIA Area Control and Video Analytics
specifications.
We are also committed to the Open Network
Video Interface Forum (ONVIF) standard and will
release our first ONVIF compliant products in
the first half of 2011 and our extensive range of
Object Linking & Embedding for Process
Control (OPC) integrations has been further
expanded by adding in support for process
control systems, access control systems, fire
systems and intruder detections systems.

Pictured: Simplicity — one box surveillance solution.
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Working in challenging Environments
El Merk project
In March 2010 Synectics Industrial Systems was
awarded a contract to supply a CCTV system for
the El Merk project in Algeria, having held long
standing relationships with all the major
parties involved - Sonatrach, the end user and
operator, Petrofac, the EPC contractor and Page
Europa, the systems integrator.

The system utilises Synectics’ SynergyPro™ control
software to allow third party integration to other
systems including alarms from access control and
intruder detection, and provides advanced playback
facilities for recorded footage from multiple
locations to ensure prompt response and reaction
to incidents.

The El Merk block is located approximately 300km
south east from Hassi Messaoud in the remote
Sahara Desert. The Desert has one of the harshest
climates and environments in the world, where
sand storms and “dust devils” are prevalent. Wind
can often reach hurricane speeds across this vast
empty plain.

In addition the Synergy software for this project has
been enhanced by additional modifications to
allow integration to the onsite Telecoms

Supervisory System, and extensive mapping to
allow the operator to visually recognise the area
when an alarm is activated.
Paul Webb, Managing Director, Synectics Industrial
Systems comments “Synectics’ continued success in
Algeria and the surrounding regions, and also with the
companies involved in this project, is an excellent
example of how our expertise, knowledge and
specialist products provide customers with a high
performance, effective and economical CCTV system
solution”.

Synectics has an excellent reputation for dealing
with these challenging environments and our
COEX™ range of camera stations are specifically
designed to be robust enough to operate in these
conditions where daytime temperatures can exceed
50oC and night-time temperatures can dip below
0oC. Limited low levels of light in this region also
necessitate the need for high quality camera
stations.
The El Merk project will form a production hub for
the region by accommodating the processing of
existing fluids sourced from the HBNS/HBN sites
(whose CCTV system was also provided by
Synectics in 2001) approx 80km away, as well as
processing the new blocks at the site.
The facilities comprise a Central Processing Facility
(CPF) for processing hydrocarbons with an initial
daily capacity of 98,000 barrels of oil, 29,000 barrels
of condensate, and 31,000 barrels of liquefied
petroleum gas (LPG), together with an NGL train
with a nominal capacity of 600 million standard
cubic feet per day. The CPF will also include 500
million standard cubic feet of residue and
re-injection gas compression and approximately
80,000 barrels per day of produced water treatment
and re-injection facilities. The first significant
volumes are expected in 2012.

Pictured: Operations in Algeria, HBNS.

Synectics has provided a complete CCTV system
solution for both the Process Areas (flares,
compressors, individual train, storage tank areas,
spheres, and water flood chemical storage area) and
Security areas (perimeter protection). The COEX™
FECH/3 PTZ, MECH/4 PTZ with Wash System and
MEDC camera stations have all been supplied to
provide surveillance in these key areas.
Pictured: Drilling rig, Algeria, HBNS.
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Group Results for the Year
Following the change in the Company’s year-end date to November the results in this Annual Report cover the extended accounting period for the
18 months to 30 November 2010 compared with the last reported results for the 12 months ended 31 May 2009.
Therefore in order to provide meaningful comparability of data, unaudited proforma results for the 12 months to 30 November 2010, with comparatives
showing unaudited results for the 12 months to 30 November 2009 are presented on both the Income Statement on page 33 and the Cash Flow
Statement on page 36.
The analysis provided within this Business Review largely follows this proforma presentation to give greater clarity on underlying trends. In addition
greater segmental analysis is included in this report to show performance of the Group across the four business segments created as a result of the
restructuring implemented from 1 June 2009.
Income Statement
Overall Group revenue for the 18 month period to 30 November 2010 amounted to £91.1 million compared with £70.7 million in the previous year
ended 31 May 2009. On a proforma basis, revenue for the year to 30 November 2010 was £61.3 million compared with £64.7 million in the previous
12 month period, representing a 5.2% fall year on year, although over half of this decline (2.8%) arose from a reduction in low margin pass through
capital sales from Quadnetics’ Managed Services business.
Revenue split between segments was as follows:
		
18 months
12 months
12 months
		
ended
ended
ended
30 November
31 May 30 November
		
2010
2009
2010
Revenue
£’000
£’000
£’000
Integration & Managed Services		
Network Systems		
Mobile Systems
Industrial Systems		
Intra-group sales		

49,439
17,625
17,080
9,639
(2,659)

Total revenue		
91,124

12 months
ended
30 November
2009
£’000

inc/(dec)
£’000

inc/(dec)
%

43,325
11,655
12,241
6,305
(2,871)

32,039
12,719
11,890
6,286
(1,654)

37,950
10,743
12,076
6,519
(2,636)

(5,911)
1,976
(186)
(233)
982

(15.6%)
18.4%
(1.5%)
(3.6%)

70,655

61,280

64,652

(3,372)

(5.2%)

The most substantial decline in revenue in the 12 months ended 30 November 2010 arose in the Integration and Managed Services division with a
reduction in sales from its overseas activities which were wound down in the period, as well as the capital sales reduction already noted.
Network Systems’ revenue increased by almost £2 million primarily as a result of improved sales in the Group’s US business serving the North American
gaming market.
Recurring revenue in the proforma year to 30 November 2010 was £15.9 million representing 26% of total revenue compared with £17.2 million (27%)
in 2009, the reduction arising as a result of lower contracted sales in the Group’s managed services activities.
Consolidated gross margins for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010 were 31.7% compared with 28.0% in the year ended 31 May 2009.
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In the proforma 12 month period to 30 November 2010 overall gross margins rose by 1.7% to 32.2% with the analysis by segment as follows:
			
18 months
12 months
			
ended
ended
		
30 November
31 May
Gross margin %			
2010
2009

12 months
ended
30 November
2010

12 months
ended
30 November
2009

inc/(dec)

24.3%
44.8%
33.3%
34.0%

21.2%
48.3%
25.8%
28.4%

24.0%
45.5%
35.0%
33.3%

24.2%
47.5%
27.6%
32.2%

(0.2%)
(2.0%)
7.4%
1.1%

Total group			
31.7%

28.0%

32.2%

30.5%

1.7%

Integration & Managed Services			
Network Systems			
Mobile Systems		
Industrial Systems			

Whilst gross margins within the Network Systems division fell by around 2% to 45.5% reflecting competitive pressures, Industrial Systems’ margins
increased by 1.1% and Mobile Systems’ margins rose by 7.4% reflecting a substantial improvement in the performance of its defence activities.
Operating expenses are summarised below:
		
18 months
12 months
12 months
		
ended
ended
ended
30 November
31 May 30 November
		
2010
2009
2010
Operating expenses
£’000
£’000
£’000

12 months
ended
30 November
2009
£’000

inc/(dec)
£’000

inc/(dec)
%

26,134
1,320
249

18,221
1,350
7

17,183
1,050
169

18,400
1,620
82

(1,217)
(570)
87

(6.6%)

Total operating expenses		
27,703

19,578

18,402

20,102

(1,700)

(8.5%)

Underlying operating expenses		
Exceptional reorganisation costs
Share-based payments charge		

On a proforma 12 month basis to 30 November 2010 underlying operating expenses fell by £1.2 million or 6.6%.
Reported operating expenses for the 18 months to 30 November 2010 also include exceptional reorganisation costs of £1.3 million, which arise
primarily from the reorganisation of the Group’s operations in Watford, Guildford and Tewkesbury in the UK and in certain operations in the Middle East,
and share-based payment charges of £0.2 million.
Total headcount has been reduced by 15% (70 people) in the last 24 months to finish the year at 397. As a result of this reduction together with the
property rationalisation that has been undertaken the annualised Group cost base (including direct personnel costs) has fallen by around £2 million.
Net finance income fell significantly in the proforma 12 month period from £143,000 in 2009 (which included £94,000 interest received on a settlement
from HM Revenue & Customs) to £23,000 in 2010.
Underlying profit before tax (being profit before tax, exceptional reorganisation costs and share-based payment charges) was £2.7 million in the
18 month period to 30 November 2010 compared with £1.8 million in the year to 31 May 2009.
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Business Review
continued

In the proforma comparison underlying profit before tax for the year ended 30 November 2010 increased by 77% from £1.5 million to £2.6 million,
as follows:
		
18 months
12 months
12 months
12 months
		
ended
ended
ended
ended
30 November
31 May 30 November
30 November
		
2010
2009
2010
2009
inc/(dec)
inc/(dec)
Underlying profit
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
%
Integration & Managed Services
Network Systems
Mobile Systems
Industrial Systems
Research & development costs		
Central costs		

2,125
2,220
1,319
1,252
(1,341)
(2,861)

2,251
2,067
(81)
473
(1,340)
(1,817)

1,333
1,949
1,198
747
(656)
(2,019)

2,255
1,543
135
792
(1,430)
(1,987)

(922)
406
1,063
(45)
774
(32)

(40.9%)
26.3%
787.4%
(5.7%)
54.1%
(1.6%)

Underlying operating profit		
Interest and joint venture income		

2,714
26

1,553
275

2,552
27

1,308
149

1,244
(122)

95.1%
(81.9%)

Underlying profit before tax		 2,740

1,828

2,579

1,457

1,122

77.0%

Underlying profit from Integration and Managed Services was lower in 2010 principally as a result of an underlying sales decline of 12%, whilst Network
Systems performance improved significantly based on increased US sales. Mobile Systems’ result improved by £1.1 million as a result of the turnaround
of its defence activities.
The total cost of research and development in 2010 was £1.4 million representing 2.2% of revenue.
The cost of the Group’s research and development activities charged to the income statement in the period fell by £0.8 million reflecting both a
reduction in total spend of £0.3 million, following the reorganisation of this activity resulting in the closure of our Guildford site, and an increase of
£0.5 million in the amount of cost capitalised as our activities have become more focused on new product development.
		
18 months
12 months
12 months
		
ended
ended
ended
30 November
31 May 30 November
Research and		
2010
2009
2010
development expenditure
£’000
£’000
£’000
Total costs		
Amounts capitalised		

2,232
(891)

1,514
(174)

Net cost		
1,341
1,340

12 months
ended
30 November
2009
£’000

inc/(dec)
£’000

inc/(dec)
%

1,355
(699)

1,629
(199)

(274)
(500)

(16.8%)
251.3%

656

1,430

(774)

(54.1%)

The Group’s underlying operating margin (being the ratio of underlying operating profit, as defined above, to revenue) for the 18 month period to
30 November 2010 was 3.0% compared with 2.2% in the year to 31 May 2009.
On a proforma basis the Group’s operating margin improved by 2.2% to 4.2%.
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Proforma segmental operating margins are set out in the table below:
			
18 months
12 months
			
ended
ended
		
30 November
31 May
Operating margin %			
2010
2009

12 months
ended
30 November
2010

12 months
ended
30 November
2009

inc/(dec)

4.3%
12.6%
7.7%
13.0%

5.2%
17.7%
(0.7%)
7.5%

4.2%
15.3%
10.1%
11.9%

5.9%
14.4%
1.1%
12.1%

(1.7%)
0.9%
9.0%
(0.2%)

Total group			
3.0%

2.2%

4.2%

2.0%

2.2%

Integration & Managed Services		
Network Systems		
Mobile Systems			
Industrial Systems			

The tax charge for the 18 month period to 30 November 2010 was £311,000 compared with £212,000 in the year to 31 May 2009. The underlying tax
rate (being the percentage ratio of the tax charge for the period, after adding back the tax effect of exceptional reorganisation costs and share-based
payments to the underlying profit before tax) was 25% compared with 30% in the previous 12 months, as the impact of higher US tax rates was more
than offset by claims for additional relief on research and development expenditure.
At 30 November 2010 the Group had carried forward tax losses of £1.4 million of which £0.7 million have been recognised in the balance sheet as a
deferred tax asset of £0.2 million.
Basic earnings per share for the 18 month period were 5.5p compared with 1.7p in the year ended 31 May 2009.
The Directors believe that a better measure of performance is the underlying earnings per share which are calculated on the underlying profit,
excluding exceptional costs as defined above.
Based on the proforma results, underlying earnings per share improved by 92% to 12.5p in 2010.
		
18 months
12 months
12 months
		
ended
ended
ended
30 November
31 May 30 November
		
2010
2009
2010
Earnings per share
p
p
p
Basic EPS		
Underlying EPS		

5.5
13.3

1.7
8.2

6.4
12.5

12 months
ended
30 November
2009
p

inc/(dec)
p

inc/(dec)
%

(1.6)
6.5

8.0
6.0

–
92%

22

Quadnetics Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

www.quadnetics.com
Stock code: QDG

Business Review
continued

Statement of Financial Position
Non-current assets at 30 November 2010 were
£19.0 million compared with £20.2 million at
31 May 2009.
Total capital expenditure in the 18 month
period amounted to £1.6 million and comprised
property plant and equipment (£0.5 million),
development costs (£0.9 million) and software
(£0.2 million). This compares with depreciation
and amortisation charges of £1.8 million. The
major development projects capitalised related
to a new hazardous environment camera
(“COEX 3000TM”), Synectics’ latest generation

radio frequency detection system (“Chili”) and a
new Hybrid and Network Digital Video
Recording Systems range (“Simplicity”).
Goodwill has reduced by £0.7 million to reflect
the write-back of surplus provisions for deferred
consideration for the trade and assets of
AlphaPoint LLC, which was acquired in 2005,
under terms whereby an element of the
consideration was calculated on an earn-out
basis based on future profits.

Working capital levels rose from £6.1 million at
31 May 2009 to £10.2 million at 30 November
2010, mainly as a result of reduced levels of
trade creditors and other payables.
Approximately £2 million of this working capital
movement arose as a result of falling activity
levels in the Group’s managed services business
which caused a partial unwinding of that
division’s negative working capital profile.
Provisions fell significantly from £1.6 million at
31 May 2009 to £0.1 million at 30 November
2010 owing to the goodwill adjustment of
£0.7 million noted above, and payment of
reorganisation costs of £0.8 million provided
for at May 2009.
Cash
The Group ended the year with cash balances
of £3.3 million at 30 November 2010
(30 November 2009: £3.4 million; 31 May 2009:
£8.1 million).
On a proforma 12 month basis cash inflow from
operations (before exceptional reorganisation
payments) in the year to 30 November 2010
was £3.1 million compared with a £0.3 million
outflow in 2009.
Free cash flow, that is cash flow generated from
operations less capital expenditure, was
£2.1 million (2009: £1.0 million outflow) and
represents a cash conversion rate of 84%, being
the ratio of free cash flow to underlying
operating profit.
The Group had no debt at 30 November 2010.

Pictured: Meeting the security needs of the Transport sector.
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Servicing 50,000 helpdesk calls a month
Protecting the UK’s Critical Infrastructure
and Assets with Innovative Electronic Systems

Key Performance Indicators
The Directors measure the Group’s
performance, principally using the following
financial indicators (as reflected in this
Annual Report):
XXSales
XXGross margin %
XXUnderlying operating profit and underlying

profit before tax (both profit measures being
before share-based payments and
exceptional reorganisation costs)
XXOperating margin %, being the ratio of

underlying profit to revenue
XXEarnings per share
XXUnderlying earnings per share (based on

underlying profit after tax)
XXOrder book
XXRecurring revenue (being contracted sales

where a service is delivered over a future
time period, and revenues are recognised in
the relevant future accounting periods)
XXFree cash flow
XXCash conversion %

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the Group include the
following:
Price and margin pressure
The electronic industry in general is competitive
with continued pressure on sales and margins.
The Group’s strategy to counteract this is to
continue to focus on customer sectors where
electronic security systems have a critical cost
of failure, or an extreme environmental
requirement, rather than the mass volume
markets. In addition we will maintain a core of
increasingly software-based proprietary
technology giving higher margin opportunities,
and focus on developing recurring revenues.

Pictured: Delivering public space security.

Technological risk
As the industry becomes increasingly technical
and transitions to digital technology, there is a
risk that products become obsolete or
irrelevant. Quadnetics has countered this risk
through its investment in research and
development resources, and a continued focus
on customer-led development to ensure that
the most appropriate product development
paths are followed.
People skills and dependency
As with most businesses, particularly those
operating in a technical field, we are dependent
on our employees with key managerial,
engineering and technical skills. The Group aims
to offer appropriate remuneration packages
and incentive arrangements, as well as
maintaining certain key-man insurance policies,
in order to mitigate this risk.
Impact of fluctuating currency exchange rates
The Group faces currency risk which it manages
principally through forward exchange contracts.
As the Group expands its sales and other
activities outside the UK, these policies will be
developed to manage the impact of currency
variations.

Summary
The year ahead will continue to be challenging
especially in the UK public sector market but
we have the financial strength, management
talent, dedicated workforce and product and
service portfolio to continue to grow profitably
– both organically and through bolt-on
acquisitions. The order book and prospect
pipeline remains strong. Our efforts to grow in
the North American, European and Middle
Eastern regions will intensify and accelerate
over the coming 12 months and we will
continue to invest in new technologies which
enable customers to see clear operational and
financial reasons to choose us.

John Shepherd	Nigel Poultney
Chief Executive
Finance Director
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Board of Directors

Non-executive Directors

David Coghlan
Chairman

Dennis Bate CBE
Director

Steve Coggins
Director

Peter Rae
Director

has degrees in Law and in Finance
from the University of New South
Wales in Sydney and an MBA from
Wharton in Philadelphia. He was
formerly a partner at strategy
consultants Bain & Company and
is currently Chairman of Evans &
Sutherland Computer Corporation
(publicly quoted in the United
States) and a director of several
other companies.

has 51 years of experience in the
construction industry, of which
36 years were spent with Bovis,
most latterly as Board Director
responsible for Bovis’ operations
in the UK and Eastern Europe, and
then Bovis’ Lend Lease operations.
He was awarded the CBE for his
services within the industry.

Steve has held various senior
roles in both sales and marketing
and general management in the
information technology arena
including Senior Vice-President at
both Amdahl (now part of Fujitsu)
and at Silicon Graphics. Earlier
he spent time at IBM and also in
engineering computing in the
aircraft industry.

is a graduate of Cambridge
University, and formerly Chief
Executive of S.W. Wood plc (now
Wyndeham Press plc). He has
current interests in a wide range of
engineering and other businesses.

Executive Directors

John Shepherd
Chief Executive

Nigel Poultney
Finance Director

has a degree in Electronic
Engineering from University
College of North Wales, Bangor.
He joined the Group as Chief
Executive in November 2008. Prior
to this he was Chief Executive of
First Technology plc, a quoted
company with turnover of around
£160 million, producing electronic
sensors for automotive and
industrial applications. Before this
he had worked for Smiths Group
plc for 13 years most recently as
the Managing Director of Smiths
Detection Division which grew from
£15 million turnover to £273 million
turnover under his leadership.

has a degree in Business Studies
from Aston University, and qualified
as a Chartered Accountant with
Deloitte, Haskins and Sells in 1981.
He joined Quadnetics Group in
1991, having previously worked for
Dairy Crest and the RTZ group.
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Executive Management Team

Graham Jones
Divisional Managing
Director, Mobile Systems
with over 30 years experience in
the international IT market, Graham
joined the Group in August 2009
as Divisional Managing Director.
Before this he was Chief Operating
Officer at Integralis Group, a
leading European Security Systems
Integrator. Prior to Integralis he
was UK Managing Director at US
software corporations Attachmate,
NEC and Actuate.

Paul Moonan
Divisional Managing
Director, Network Systems
and Integration &
Managed Services

Paul Webb
Divisional Managing
Director, Industrial
Systems and Synectics
Technology Centre

has an MBA from Sheffield Business
School and a degree in Business
Studies from Bradford University.
He joined Quadnetics as Divisional
Managing Director in June 2009.
Prior to this he had been a Director
at Romec, Chubb, Securicor and
more recently at G4S where he held
the position of Group Managing
Director, Security Services.

has a degree in Physics from
Imperial College, London, and has
worked in the CCTV industry since
1988, in engineering, sales and
marketing, business development
and general management roles.
Previously Managing Director of
Bewator Limited, and following a
number of years living and working
in Asia, Paul joined Quadnetics in
2004 prior to the acquisition of Coex
Limited.
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NC Poultney
Quadnetics Group plc
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Report of the Directors
The Directors present their report and audited financial statements of the Group and the Company for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010.
The Directors’ Report comprises the information set out on pages 26 to 31.
Principal activities
The principal activity of the Group during the period was the provision of advanced CCTV and networked video systems and related security
management and support services. The principal activity of the Company was to act as a holding company for its trading subsidiaries.
Review of business and future developments
The consolidated income statement for the period is set out on page 33.
A review of the Group’s activities during the period and its prospects for the future are contained in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 and 5 and the
Business Review on pages 8 through to 23 and is incorporated into this report by reference.
Group results and dividend
The consolidated profit after tax for the period was £860,000 (12 months to 31 May 2009: £259,000).
The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 4.5p per share (2009: 4.5p per share), totalling £791,000 on 9 May 2011 to shareholders
registered on 18 March 2011. Together with the first interim dividend of 2.5p per share and the second interim dividend of 2.5p per share, this brings
the total dividend for the 18 month period to 9.5p per share (12 months to 31 May 2009: 7.0p per share) amounting to £1,669,000 (12 months to
31 May 2009: £1,179,000).
Research and development expenditure
The Group has continued to invest in research and development of both software and hardware products for CCTV applications during the period
incurring total costs of £2,232,000 (12 months to 31 May 2009: £1,588,000), of which £1,341,000 (12 months to 31 May 2009: £1,414,000) has been
written off to the income statement.
Directors
The Directors of the Company who served during the 18 months ended 30 November 2010 were DJ Coghlan, D Bate, SW Coggins, NC Poultney,
PM Rae, J Shepherd and RC Singleton (resigned 6 May 2010).
In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, DJ Coghlan and SW Coggins retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.
Substantial shareholdings
As at 1 March 2011, the Company was aware of the following interests, other than Directors, in excess of 3% of the issued Ordinary share capital of the
Company:
						
Number
						
of shares

% of total
voting rights

HSBC Global Custody Nominee Limited					
4,880,000
Quadnetics Employees’ Trustees Limited					
2,047,810
Chase Nominees Limited					
1,994,409
Schroder Investment Management Limited				
890,200
Giltspur Nominees Limited					
693,793

27.77
11.62
11.35
5.07
3.95

Nature of
interest
Direct
Direct
Indirect*
Indirect*
Direct

* Included within the interests of Chase Nominees Limited are 890,200 shares held in the name of Schroder Investment Management Limited. Chase
hold these shares as nominee only for Schroder Investment Management Limited and as such only have an indirect interest. As the shares are
ultimately held on behalf of Schroder UK Smaller Companies trust fund, Schroder Investment Management Limited only have an indirect interest.
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Directors’ interests in the Company
The Directors’ interests in the Company’s Ordinary share capital at 30 November 2010 which were all beneficial, are shown in the table below:
						
30 November 2010
							
Number of
							 shares

31 May 2009
Number of
shares

DJ Coghlan						
2,001,303
PM Rae						 218,302
D Bate						 146,000
SW Coggins						 11,000
NC Poultney						 13,000
J Shepherd						 40,000

1,990,875
218,302
100,000
11,000
13,000
–

							
2,429,605

2,333,177

At the date of his resignation RC Singleton held 200,000 shares (31 May 2009: 339,800 shares).
The interests of the Directors in the Company’s share schemes, which are not included above, are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages
30 to 31.
Employees
Employment policies throughout the Group have been established to comply with relevant legislation and codes of practice relating to employment,
health and safety and equal opportunities. The Group’s policy is to consult and discuss current developments within the Group with employees and to
take account of their views in making decisions likely to affect their interests.
The Group makes every effort to recruit and continue the employment, training and promotion of those persons who are or become disabled.
Policy on the payment of suppliers
The Group’s policy during the period was to pay suppliers in accordance with agreed terms and this policy will continue for the year ending
30 November 2011.
At 30 November 2010 the Group had 53 days purchases outstanding in trade payables (31 May 2009: 60 days).
Charitable donations
During the period the Group made charitable donations of £1,083 (12 months to 31 May 2009: £619).
No political donations were made during the period.
Financial instruments
The Group’s operations expose it to a variety of financial risks including foreign exchange rates and credit risk. Further details are set out in note 30.
Auditors
In accordance with section 489 of the Companies Act 2006, a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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Report of the Directors
continued

Authorities to allot shares, disapplication of statutory pre-emption rights and to buy the Company’s own shares
The following resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting as special business:
1)

An Ordinary Resolution to authorise the Directors to allot Ordinary shares of up to £1,159,604 in nominal value (which represents approximately
33% of the current issued Ordinary share capital of the Company). In accordance with guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers, this
figure comprises one third of the issued Ordinary share capital.

2)

A Special Resolution to renew the existing disapplication of the pre-emption provisions of section 561(1) of the Companies Act 2006 so as to give
the Directors power to allot shares for cash, firstly in relation to rights issues, and secondly in relation to the issue of Ordinary shares for cash up to a
maximum aggregate nominal value of £175,697 (which represents approximately 5% of the issued Ordinary share capital of the Company).

3)

A Special Resolution to enable the Company to purchase its own shares up to a maximum of 1,756,974 Ordinary shares, representing
approximately 10% of the current issued Ordinary share capital of the Company. The Directors have no present intention to exercise such powers
and would only do so if satisfied that it would be in the interests of shareholders to do so.

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for preparing their Annual Report and the Group and Company financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.
Company law requires that the Directors prepare Group and Parent Company financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable law and have elected
to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Parent Company and of their profit or loss for the relevant period. In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company
financial statements, the Directors are required to:
XXselect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
XXmake judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
XXfor the Group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
XXfor the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material

departures disclosed and explained in the Parent Company financial statements; and
XXprepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Parent Company will

continue in business.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included in the Company’s website.
Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The Independent Auditors’ Report is set out on page 32. So far as the Directors are aware, there is no information relevant to the Auditors’ preparation
of their report that has not been disclosed to the Company’s Auditors. Each Director has taken all steps required of a Director to ensure that he is aware
of any information relevant to the audit and to establish that all such information has been disclosed to the Auditors.
Going concern
After making appropriate enquiries the Directors have reasonable expectations that the Company and Group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further information is set out on page 39.

Our Business

 Innovating  Integrating

 Protecting

Our Governance

24–32 

Our Financials

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Although not required to do so by the AIM rules the Directors have decided to provide the following corporate governance and Directors’
remuneration disclosures.
The Board
The Board currently consists of two executive and four non-executive Directors. The names, roles and biographical details of the Directors are set out on
page 24. The Board meets at least six times a year, and relevant information is distributed to Directors in advance of these meetings. The Directors have
access to all information and, if required, external advice at the expense of the Company, and access to the Company Secretary. The Board has adopted
a schedule of matters specifically reserved to itself for decision, which includes major investment decisions, and changes in the composition of the
Group. The Board approves the Group’s strategy and annual budget, and considers detailed financial and operational reports on the progress of the
Group. In relation to non-reserved matters the Board is assisted by a number of committees with delegated authority. The Board met eleven times
during the 18 month period with all Directors in attendance.
The Board attaches a high priority to communication with shareholders. The Group’s annual and half yearly reports are sent to all shareholders. The
Group liaises regularly with major shareholders and there is an opportunity for individual shareholders to question the Chairman at the Annual General
Meeting. The Company’s website (www.quadnetics.com) provides financial and business information about the Group, including copies of its most
recent annual and interim reports.
The Board includes non-executive Directors, who bring strong judgement and considerable knowledge and experience to the Board’s deliberations.
Their service is non-pensionable and, except for DJ Coghlan (Chairman), they do not participate in the Company’s share schemes.
D Bate, SW Coggins and PM Rae have been identified as independent non-executive Directors, with PM Rae being the Senior Independent Director. The
Board consider them to be independent of Group management and free from any business or other relationships that would materially interfere with
the exercise of their independent judgement.
All Directors are subject to re-election every three years. Accordingly, DJ Coghlan and SW Coggins retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at that meeting.
The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises PM Rae, D Bate and SW Coggins, who are all non-executive Directors, and provides a forum for reporting by the
Group’s external auditors. The Audit Committee has formal written terms of reference and met three times during the course of the last financial
period, with all three members in attendance. Executive Directors do not attend other than by invitation of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee’s primary task is to review the scope and results of the external audit. It is also responsible for assisting the Board to discharge its
duties with regard to the Group’s financial affairs and, in liaison with the external auditors, for reviewing the adequacy of the Group’s accounting,
financial and operational controls. The Audit Committee also ensures that an appropriate relationship between the Group and its external auditors is
maintained. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the current provision of non-audit services by the Group’s auditors does not impair their
independence or objectivity.
Internal control
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The purpose of the system
of internal control is to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Directors have established an organisational structure with clear operating procedures, lines of responsibility and delegated authority. In particular
there are clear procedures for capital investment appraisal and approval, contract risk appraisal and financial reporting within a comprehensive financial
planning and accounting framework.
The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and concluded that such a function is not currently appropriate given the size of the
Group. However the Directors have implemented a system of internal control checks which are carried out by head office finance staff to give
additional assurance on controls and supplement the work undertaken by external auditors.

29

30

Quadnetics Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

www.quadnetics.com
Stock code: QDG

Report of the Directors
continued

REMUNERATION REPORT
The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises PM Rae, D Bate and SW Coggins, who are all non-executive Directors and have no personal or
financial interests in the matters to be decided. The objective of the Remuneration Committee’s policy is to attract, retain and motivate high calibre
individuals as executive Directors with a competitive package of basic salary, incentives and rewards, including share options, which are linked to
individual performance, the overall performance of the Group and the interests of shareholders. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
agreeing the remuneration of the managing directors of the principal subsidiaries and making awards to other employees under the Group’s share
option and employee share schemes.
The Remuneration Committee has formal written terms of reference and met four times during the course of the last financial period, with all members
in attendance. Executive Directors do not attend other than by invitation of the Remuneration Committee.
Information in a) and b) below forms part of the financial statements.
a) Remuneration
						
18 months to 12 months to		
					
Compensation 30 Nov 2010 31 May 2009 18 months to 12 months to
		
Salary			
for loss
Total (excl.
Total (excl. 30 Nov 2010 31 May 2009
		
and fees
Bonuses*
Benefits
of office
pension)
pension)
Pension
Pension
		
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
Executive Directors
NC Poultney
G Robinson (resigned 10 March 2009)
J Shepherd (appointed
4 November 2008)
RC Singleton (resigned 6 May 2010)
Non-executive Directors
DJ Coghlan
PM Rae
SW Coggins
D Bate
Total

180
–

–
–

39
1

–
–

219
1

140
293

63
–

42
13

338
154

–
17

35
34

–
200

373
405

181
221

41
44

16
49

113
38
38
38

–
–
–
–

22
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

135
38
38
38

90
25
25
25

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

899

17

131

200

1,247

1,000

148

120

* Bonuses were paid or accrued in the 18 months ended 30 November 2010 for specific achievement of agreed personal and corporate objectives.
Pension contributions shown above reflect pension payments into money purchase arrangements. There were no other pension payments or accrued
pension benefits arising under money purchase schemes in respect of Directors.
b) Share schemes
The Directors did not have any interests in the Company’s share option schemes during the period and no new options were granted to, or exercised
by, any Directors between 1 December 2010 and 4 March 2011.
The following Directors held an interest in the Company’s shares at 30 November 2010 through participation in the Quadnetics Group Executive Shared
Ownership Plan (the “ExSOP”), which was established on 7 July 2009, as set out below and in note 23. The ExSOP replaced the previous Quadnetics
Group Employee Share Scheme.
Under the provisions of the ExSOP shares (the ‘ExSOP shares’) are jointly owned by nominated senior employees and by an employees share trust on
terms, similar to a share option scheme, whereby the value of appreciation in the Company’s share price over a minimum three-year period accrues to
the relevant employee, provided the Company meets certain performance thresholds linked to the FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index. The
performance thresholds are identical to those under the former Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme. No rights under this scheme were
exercised by Directors during the period.
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Number of
							
shares

Issue price
(p)

370,338
J Shepherd						
NC Poultney						
200,000
DJ Coghlan						
93,243

147.5
147.5
147.5

31

RC Singleton held an interest in 250,000 shares at an issue price of 147.5p in the above scheme prior to his resignation on 6 May 2010 when his interest
lapsed.
The mid market price of the Company’s shares at the beginning and end of the financial period were as follows:
						
Ordinary shares
								
of 20p each
At 1 June 2009							
133.0p
At 30 November 2010							
178.5p

The maximum and minimum share prices during the period were as follows:
								
Ordinary shares
								
of 20p each
Maximum							
179.5p
Minimum							
131.5p

c) Service contracts
There are no Directors’ service contracts with notice periods in excess of one year. The service contracts of the Directors who are eligible for re-election
at the Annual General Meeting are as follows:
								
Notice period
DJ Coghlan							
12 months
SW Coggins							
6 months

Post balance sheet event
On 22 December 2010 Synectic Systems Group Limited (“SSGL”) acquired the entire issued share capital of Persides Technology Limited (“PTL”) for a total
consideration of £230,000 in cash, and the trade and net assets of PTL were hived up to SSGL at fair value.
PTL specialises in advanced battlefield electronic monitoring systems (EMS) and ruggedized hand-held digital video systems (VEEcam®) for use in
extreme environments, and was a technology partner to the Group’s defence business, playing an important role in the development of Synectics’
latest generation radio frequency detection system, Chili.

By Order of the Board

NC Poultney
Secretary
Quadnetics Group plc
Registered Number: 1740011
4 March 2011
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Independent Auditors’ Report
We have audited the financial statements of Quadnetics Group plc for the period ended 30 November 2010 which comprise the Consolidated Income
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial
statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). We have not
audited the proforma information presented within the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement.
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with chapter 3 of part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the
Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 28, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
(APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the APB’s website at www.frc.org.uk/apb/scope/UKP.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion:
XXthe financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 30 November 2010 and of the
Group’s profit for the period then ended;
XXthe Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;
XXthe Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
XXthe financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the Group financial

statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion:
XXthe part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006; and
XXthe information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial

statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
XXadequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches

not visited by us; or
XXthe Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
XXcertain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
XXwe have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Peter Meehan (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
One Snowhill
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham
B4 6GH
4 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the 18 months ended 30 November 2010

				
18 months
				
ended
				
30 November
				
2010
			
Notes
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

12 months
12 months
ended
ended
30 November
30 November
2010
2009
£’000
£’000
Unaudited proforma
information (note 1(a))

Revenue				
91,124
Cost of sales				
(62,276)

70,655
(50,881)

61,280
(41,545)

64,652
(44,944)

Gross profit				
28,848
Operating expenses			
3
(27,703)

19,774
(19,578)

19,735
(18,402)

19,708
(20,102)

Profit from operations			 6
Excluding exceptional reorganisation costs
and share-based payments				
2,714
Exceptional reorganisation costs			
4
(1,320)
Share-based payments charge			
24
(249)
Total profit from operations				
1,145
Finance income			
9
441
Finance costs			
10
(415)
Share of results of joint venture				
–

1,553
(1,350)
(7)
196
552
(287)
10

2,552
(1,050)
(169)
1,333
295
(272)
4

1,308
(1,620)
(82)
(394)
332
(189)
6

Profit before tax
Excluding exceptional reorganisation costs
and share-based payments				
2,740
Exceptional reorganisation costs			
4
(1,320)
Share-based payments charge			
24
(249)
Total profit before tax				
1,171
Income tax expense			
11
(311)

1,828
(1,350)
(7)
471
(212)

2,579
(1,050)
(169)
1,360
(366)

1,457
(1,620)
(82)
(245)
2

Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent		
Basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share		

13

860

259

994

(243)

5.5p

1.7p

6.4p

(1.6)p

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the 18 months ended 30 November 2010
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
							
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Profit for the period						
860
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations					
13
Actuarial gains/(losses)						
104
Effect of not recognising the pension scheme surplus					
(104)

259
117
(293)
293

Total comprehensive income for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent		
873

376
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
30 November 2010

						
30 November
						
2010
						
Notes
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment					
14
Intangible assets					
15
Deferred tax asset					
11
Investment in joint venture					
16

1,503
17,292
176
–

1,809
17,903
414
55

							
18,971

20,181

Current assets
Inventories					
17
Trade and other receivables					
18
Cash and cash equivalents					
19

5,897
22,511
3,349

5,343
22,503
8,111

							
31,757

35,957

Total assets					

50,728

56,138

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables					
20
Tax liabilities					
Current provisions					
21

(18,256)
(535)
(112)

(21,767)
(553)
(1,585)

							
(18,903)

(23,905)

Non-current liabilities
Non-current provisions					
21

(25)

(75)

							
(25)

(75)

Total liabilities					

(18,928)

(23,980)

Net assets						
31,800

32,158

Equity attributable to equity holders of parent company
Called up share capital					
22
3,514
Share premium account						
15,719
Merger reserve					
22
9,565
Other reserves					
22
(3,486)
Currency translation reserve						
117

3,382
14,851
9,565
(2,486)
104

Retained earnings						
6,371

6,742

Total equity						
31,800

32,158

The financial statements on pages 33 to 70 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2011 and were signed on its
behalf by:

J Shepherd
Director
Company number : 1740011

NC Poultney
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the 18 months ended 30 November 2010

		

Called up
share
capital
£’000

Share			
Currency		
premium
Merger
Other
translation
Retained
account
reserve
reserves
reserve
earnings
Total
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000

At 1 June 2008
Profit after tax for the year
Dividends paid (note 12)
Credit in relation to
share-based payments
Currency translation adjustment

3,382
–
–

14,851
–
–

9,565
–
–

(2,486)
–
–

(13)
–
–

7,563
259
(1,087)

32,862
259
(1,087)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
117

7
–

7
117

At 31 May 2009
Issue of shares
Profit after tax for the period
Dividends paid
Credit in relation to
share-based payments
Currency translation adjustment

3,382
132
–
–

14,851
868
–
–

9,565
–
–
–

(2,486)
(1,000)
–
–

104
–
–
–

6,742
–
860
(1,480)

32,158
–
860
(1,480)

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
13

249
–

249
13

3,514

15,719

9,565

117

6,371

31,800

At 30 November 2010

(3,486)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the 18 months ended 30 November 2010

				
18 months
				
ended
				
30 November
				
2010
			
Notes
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

12 months
12 months
ended
ended
30 November
30 November
2010
2009
£’000
£’000
Unaudited proforma
information (note 1(a))

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the period				
860
Income tax expense				
311
Finance income				
(441)
Finance costs				
415
Depreciation and amortisation charge			
1,846
Loss on disposal of non-current assets				
2
Share-based payments charge				
249

259
212
(552)
287
1,140
51
7

994
366
(295)
272
1,215
5
169

(243)
(2)
(332)
189
1,267
61
82

Operating cash flows before movement in working capital		
Increase in inventories				
Decrease/(increase) in receivables				
(Decrease)/increase in payables and provisions			

3,242
(535)
55
(4,407)

1,404
(1,067)
7,617
(5,974)

2,726
(473)
(1,791)
1,185

1,022
(131)
2,710
(4,941)

Cash generated from operations			
Interest received			
Tax (paid)/received			

(1,645)
52
(38)

1,980
281
56

1,647
33
722

(1,340)
189
(560)

Net cash from operating activities			

(1,631)

2,317

2,402

(1,711)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment		
(493)
Sale of property, plant and equipment				
29
Capitalised development costs				
(891)
Purchased software				
(210)
Deferred consideration on acquisition made in 2005			
(79)
Investment in joint venture				
–

(460)
46
(174)
(68)
(382)
(45)

(244)
26
(699)
(75)
–
–

(442)
36
(199)
(154)
(78)
(7)

Net cash used in investing activities				
(1,644)

(1,083)

(992)

(844)

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid				
(21)
Dividends paid			
(1,480)

(11)
(1,087)

(10)
(1,480)

(22)
(1,087)

Net cash used in financing activities			

(1,098)

(1,490)

(1,109)

(1,501)
14

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents			
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period			
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period		

19

35

21

(17)

(4,762)
8,111

171
7,940

(59)
3,408

(3,681)
7,089

3,349

8,111

3,349

3,408
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the 18 months ended 30 November 2010

1

Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been applied
consistently to all the periods presented unless otherwise stated.
a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union (‘adopted IFRS’), and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under adopted IFRS. The Company has elected to prepare its Parent
Company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP; these are presented on pages 71 to 80.
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the period ended 30 November 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries, and the Group’s interest in jointly controlled entities.
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention except where the measurement of balances at fair value
is required as set out below. The following policies are those that the Group considers to be its principal accounting policies in respect of its
consolidated results.
Following the change in the Company’s year end date to November the results in the Annual Report cover the extended accounting period
for the 18 months to 30 November 2010 compared with the last reported results for the 12 months ended 31 May 2009. Therefore in order
to provide meaningful comparability of data unaudited proforma results for the 12 months to 30 November 2010, with comparatives showing
results for the 12 months to 30 November 2009 are presented on both the Income Statement and Cash Flow Statement.
		Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The following adopted IFRS were available for early application but have not been applied by the Group in these financial statements:

			
Endorsed		
IFRIC 17
IFRIC 18
IFRS 3
IAS 27
IFRIC 19
IFRIC 14
IFRS 2
		
Improvements
Project
IAS 1
IAS 7
IAS 17
IAS 18
IAS 36
IAS 38
IAS 39
		
IAS 39

Effective for periods
beginning on or after:

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
Transfers of assets from customers
Business combinations (revised)
Consolidated and separate financial statements (revised)
Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
Amendments to clarify scope and accounting for Group settled share-based
payment transactions in the separate financial statements
Amendments to various standards including:
Presentation of financial statements – current/non-current classification of convertible instruments
Statement of cash flows – classification of expenditures on unrecognised assets
Leases – classification of leases of land and buildings
Revenue – determining whether an entity is acting as principal or agent
Impairment of Assets – unit of accounting for goodwill impairment test
Measuring the fair value of an intangible asset acquired in a business combination
Financial Instruments; Recognition and measurement – treating loan prepayment penalties
as closely related embedded derivatives
Financial Instruments; Recognition and measurement – cash flow hedge accounting

1 July 2009
1 July 2009
1 July 2009
1 July 2009
1 July 2010
1 January 2011
1 January 2010

1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
1 January 2010
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the 18 months ended 30 November 2010

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)
The Directors anticipate that all of the above Standards and Interpretations will be adopted in the Group’s financial statements for the
period commencing 1 December 2010 and/or 1 December 2011 as appropriate and that their adoption will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the Group, except for the adoption of IFRS 3: Business Combinations (revised). There are a number of effects from the
application of this standard as follows:
XX All acquisitions of integrated sets of activities capable of operating as a business are required to be accounted for as a business

combination;
XX Acquisition costs incurred are expensed to the income statement as incurred; and
XX Contingent consideration is estimated at its fair value as at the date of acquisition and thereafter, if liability classified, is remeasured at fair

value until settled. Changes in fair value are recorded within finance income/expense in the income statement.
For the year ended 30 November 2010 the following accounting standards were adopted:
XX IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised)
XX IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
XX IFRS 8 Operating Segments
XX IFRIC 13 Customer loyalty programmes
XX IFRIC 15 Agreements for the construction of real estate
XX IFRIC 16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
XX IFRS 2 Share based payment – vesting conditions and calculations

	IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
		This standard is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 and has therefore been applied by the Group from 1 June 2009. As
a result, the Group presents in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity all owner changes in equity. A Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income is also presented. Comparative information has been re-presented so that it is also in conformity with the revised
standard. Since the change is presentational only, there is no impact on earnings per share.
	IFRS 8 Operating Segments
As of 1 June 2009 the Group is required by the standard to determine and present information so as to enable users of its financial statements
to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it
operates. Previously operating segments were required to be determined in accordance with IAS 14 Segment Reporting. Since the change
is presentational only, there is no impact on earnings per share.
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s results are
reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (defined as the Group’s Chief Executive and Finance Director) to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance and for which discreet financial information is available.
The adoption of the amendments of IFRIC 16 ‘Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation’ and IFRS 2 ‘Share based payment – vesting
conditions and calculations’ in the current year has no impact on the financial statements.
IAS 23: Borrowing Costs (revised); IFRIC 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes and IFRIC 15: Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate were
endorsed for the period but are not applicable to the Group.
Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of accounting policies that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 1(s).
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
Going concern
After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual
report and accounts.
The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of reasonably possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group should
be able to operate within the level of its current financing arrangements. The Group holds cash balances and is not reliant on debt within its
capital structure. There is limited exposure to credit, liquidity and foreign currency risk, as detailed in note 30.
Further information on the Group’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position, and on the financial position of the Group, its cash flows and liquidity position, are described in the Business Review on pages
8 to 23.
b) Basis of consolidation
Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefit from their
activities. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group undertakes an economic activity that is subject to joint control. Joint control
exists when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activity require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.
The Group’s interest in jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method. Under this method the Group’s share of the
profits less losses of jointly controlled entities is included in the consolidated income statement and its interest in their net assets is included
in investments in jointly controlled entities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Where the share of losses exceeds the
interests in the entity, the carrying amount is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued. Interest in the entity is the
carrying amount of the investment together with any long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the net investment in the entity.
c)

Business combinations and goodwill
The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of the business combination
is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value
less costs to sell. Any excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities is recognised as goodwill.
Adjustments are made to fair values to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into alignment with those of the Group. The
costs of integrating and reorganising acquired businesses are charged to the post-acquisition income statement.
Goodwill is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill would not be reversed in a subsequent period.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
d) Revenue
Revenue, which excludes value added tax, is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for
rebates and other similar allowances.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods, which primarily takes place on delivery of the goods.
	Installation contract income
Revenue and profits attributable to contracts are included in the income statement as the contracts proceed in proportions relevant to their
state of completion, less amounts recognised in previous years.
Contract balances
Contract balances are stated at cost, net of amounts transferred to cost of sales in respect of work recorded as revenue, after deducting
foreseeable losses and payments on account not matched with revenue. Provision is made for any losses as soon as they are foreseen.
Amounts recoverable on contracts, which are included in receivables, are stated at the net sales value of the work done less payments on
account. Excess payments on account are included in current liabilities.
The Group sells certain products bundled with maintenance to be delivered over a predetermined period of time. Where possible, these
are considered as identifiable and separate components to which general revenue recognition criteria can be applied separately. Once
the separate components have been identified, the amount received or receivable from the customer is allocated based on the individual
component’s fair value.
Maintenance contracts
Income receivable from maintenance contracts is recognised in revenue on a straight-line basis over the contract term. Income from
maintenance contracts which relates to periods subsequent to the period end is included in current liabilities as deferred income.
e)	Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
Assets acquired under finance leases, including hire purchase agreements where applicable, are capitalised and depreciated in accordance with
the Group’s depreciation policy or over the term of the lease if shorter. The capital element of future lease payments is included in the balance
sheet as obligations under finance leases. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to income.
		Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
Benefits received as an incentive to sign a lease, whatever form they may take, are credited to the income statement on a straight line basis
over the lease term.
f)

Foreign currency
The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each
Group entity are expressed in British pounds (‘£’), which is the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
Exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are expressed in
British pounds using exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and recognised in the Group’s foreign currency translation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
		Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date.
g) Retirement benefit costs
Group employees are members of various pension schemes, all of which operate on a money purchase basis. Contributions to these schemes
are charged to the income statement as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
The Group also operates a retirement benefit scheme, which has deferred defined benefit members. The expected return on the scheme’s
assets and the expected increase in the present value of the scheme’s liabilities during the period are included in the income statement as
other finance income and charges as appropriate. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Pension scheme liabilities and, to the extent that they are recoverable, pension scheme assets are recognised in the balance sheet
and represent the difference between the market value of the scheme’s assets and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, net of deferred
taxation.
Pension scheme liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at a rate using the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability. Past service cost is comprehensive
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested.
h) Share-based payments
In accordance with IFRS 2, equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value is recognised
as an employee expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the number of shares that will
eventually vest. The fair value of the options granted is calculated using an option pricing model which is based on the Black‑Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the fair value of the amount payable to the employee is recognised in the income
statement with a corresponding movement in liabilities. The fair value is initially measured at grant date and spread over the period during
which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The fair value is measured based on an option pricing model taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The liability is revalued at each balance sheet date and
settlement date with any changes to fair value being recognised in the income statement.
Transactions of the Company-sponsored Executive Shared Ownership Plan are treated as being those of the Company and are therefore
reflected in the Parent Company and Group financial statements. In particular the scheme’s purchases of shares in the Company are debited
directly to equity, within ‘Other reserves’.
i)

Taxation
The income tax expense is the sum of current tax and deferred tax.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement
of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.
Current and deferred tax for the period
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when they relate to items credited or
debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in equity, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a
business combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or in determining the
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the
business combination.
j)

Dividends
Dividends proposed by the Directors and unpaid at the end of the period are not recognised in the financial statements until they have been
approved by shareholders at a General Meeting of the Company. Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid.

k) Property, plant and equipment
All property, plant and equipment assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of fixed assets, other than freehold land which is not depreciated, less their estimated
residual values, on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life, commencing on the first day of the month after being brought into use.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:
XX Freehold buildings

– 2%

XX Short leasehold improvements

– over the term of the lease

XX Plant, equipment and motor vehicles

– 10% to 33%

Residual values, remaining useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.
Gains or losses on disposal are included in the income statement.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
l) Research and development costs
Research costs are written off to the income statement as incurred.
Development costs are capitalised and held as ‘Intangible assets’ in the balance sheet when the costs relate to a clearly defined project; the
costs are separately identifiable; the outcome of such a project has been assessed with reasonable certainty as to its technical feasibility
and its ultimate commercial viability; the aggregate of the deferred costs plus all future expected costs in bringing the product to market
is exceeded by the future expected sales revenue; and adequate resources are expected to exist to enable the project to be completed.
Amortisation is charged to match revenue generated, over the useful life of the product, from the commencement of commercial sales.
Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.
Development expenditure that does not meet these criteria is written off to the income statement as incurred.
m) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets, such as purchased computer software, are shown at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.
Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis from the date they are available for use over the estimated useful
lives of the intangible asset. The useful life of purchased software is three to five years.
Amortisation periods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate.
	Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets, other than goodwill, to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in income.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in income.
n)	Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value on a first in first out basis. In the case of finished goods, cost includes all
direct expenditure and production overheads based on the normal level of activity. Where necessary, an appropriate allowance is made for
obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
o) Provisions
Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Deferred consideration relating to business combinations
Deferred consideration relating to business combinations is initially measured at fair value at the date of acquisition and at subsequent
reporting dates measured in accordance with IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’.
Restructuring
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected that it will be carried out.
Onerous contracts
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist
where the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received under it.
p) Financial instruments
The Group classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank deposits and bank current accounts, net of bank overdrafts,
with an original maturity of three months or less.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost less any
impairment loss.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost.
q) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
r)

Judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management make various judgements that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. The critical judgements are considered to be the following:
Revenue recognition
Following detailed quantification of the Group’s assets, liabilities and revenue deriving from contracts, the Directors are satisfied that revenue
is recognised when, and to the extent that, the Group obtains the right to consideration, which is derived on a contract-by-contract basis
from an assessment of the fair value of the goods or services provided as at the reporting date as a proportion of the total fair value of each
contract. Where products and maintenance are bundled in a contract some judgement may be required to identify the separate components
which are recognised in accordance with general revenue recognition criteria.
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Principal accounting policies (continued)
Capitalisation of development costs
It is Group policy to capitalise and amortise development expenditure for the production of new or substantially improved products and
processes if the product or process is technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources to complete development.
Such expenditure is amortised over the period which the Directors expect to obtain economic benefits. This policy includes judgements
regarding the initial recognition of the asset based upon market research and expected future net revenues. It also includes estimations
regarding the period of amortisation.
s)

Significant estimates
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies the Directors are required to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods. To date there has been no material impact on the carrying value of assets or liabilities from such estimates.

	Impairment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill is
allocated. The value in use calculation includes estimates about future financial performance and long-term growth rates and requires
management to select a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The key assumptions used in the
impairment review are disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.
Deferred tax
The Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of unutilised losses and other temporary differences arising in certain of the Group’s
businesses. This requires management to make decisions on the recoverability of such deferred tax assets based on future forecasts of taxable
profits. If these forecast profits do not materialise, or there are changes in the tax rates or to the period over which the losses or temporary
differences might be recognised, the value of the deferred tax asset will need to be revised in a future period.
The Group has losses for which no value has been recognised for deferred tax purposes in these financial statements, as future economic
benefit of these temporary differences is not probable. If appropriate profits are earned in the future, the temporary difference may result in a
benefit to the Group in the form of a reduced tax charge in a future period.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
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Segmental analysis
Revenue
The Directors believe that the Group’s activities can be represented in the segments shown below and that the best measure of performance of
those segments is operating profit before exceptional costs and share-based payments charge.
						
18 months
12 months
						
ended
ended
						
30 November
31 May
						
2010
2009
						
£’000
£’000
Integration & Managed Services						
49,439
Network Systems						
17,625
Mobile Systems						
17,080
Industrial Systems						
9,639
Intra-group sales						
(2,659)

43,325
11,655
12,241
6,305
(2,871)

						
91,124

70,655

Underlying Operating Profit
18 months ended 30 November 2010
				
Underlying
				
operating
				
profit*
				
£’000

Share-based
payments
charge
£’000

Exceptional
reorganisation
costs
£’000

Segment
result**
£’000

Integration & Managed Services				
2,125
Network Systems				
2,220
Mobile Systems				
1,319
Industrial Systems				
1,252
Research & Development Costs				
(1,341)
Central Costs				
(2,861)

(31)
(48)
(40)
(20)
–
(110)

(974)
–
(58)
–
(57)
(231)

1,120
2,172
1,221
1,232
(1,398)
(3,202)

				
2,714

(249)

(1,320)

1,145

Underlying Operating Profit
12 months ended 31 May 2009
				
Underlying
				
operating
				
profit*
				
£’000

Share-based
payments
charge
£’000

Exceptional
reorganisation
costs
£’000

Segment
result**
£’000

Integration & Managed Services				
2,251
Network Systems				
2,067
Mobile Systems				
(81)
Industrial Systems				
473
Research & Development Costs				
(1,340)
Central Costs			
(1,817)

(5)
–
(2)
–
–
–

(574)
(4)
(337)
–
–
(435)

1,672
2,063
(420)
473
(1,340)
(2,252)

				
1,553

(7)

(1,350)

196

* Profit from operations before share-based payments charge and exceptional reorganisation costs.
** Profit from operations after share-based payments charge and exceptional reorganisation costs.
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Segmental analysis (continued)
Net Assets
Net assets attributed to each business segment represent the net external operating assets of the respective businesses excluding goodwill, bank
balances and debt which are shown as unallocated amounts.
							
30 November
							
2010
					
Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets
					
£’000
£’000
£’000
Integration & Managed Services					
14,244
Network Systems					
7,554
Mobile Systems					
5,180
Industrial Systems					
4,981
Unallocated					
18,769

(10,449)
(4,235)
(2,218)
(2,281)
255

3,795
3,319
2,962
2,700
19,024

					
50,728

(18,928)

31,800

							
31 May
							
2009
					
Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets
					£’000
£’000
£’000
Integration & Managed Services					
14,851
Network Systems					
7,566
Mobile Systems					
5,531
Industrial Systems					
3,874
Unallocated					
24,316

(13,390)
(5,733)
(2,743)
(1,293)
(821)

1,461
1,833
2,788
2,581
23,495

					
56,138

(23,980)

32,158

By geographical segment
Geographical location of customers:
		
		Capital			
Capital
Revenue		additions
Revenue		additions
		
18 Months		
18 months
12 months		
12 months
ended
Assets
ended
ended
Assets
ended
30 November 30 November 30 November
31 May
31 May
31 May
2010
2010
2010
2009
2009
2009
		
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
United Kingdom		
North America
Middle East		
Asia and Pacific		
Rest of World		

70,951
7,017
2,970
1,516
8,670

46,008
4,206
493
–
21

397
93
–
–
–

56,061
3,801
3,568
1,800
5,425

49,566
4,641
1,910
–
21

632
67
6
–
–

91,124

50,728

490

70,655

56,138

705
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4

Net operating expenses
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Distribution costs						
464
Administrative expenses (before exceptional reorganisation costs and share-based payments charge)		
25,670
Exceptional reorganisation costs (note 4)					
1,320
Share-based payments charge						
249
Total administrative expenses						
27,239

376
17,845
1,350
7
19,202

						
27,703

19,578

Exceptional reorganisation costs
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Redundancy and related costs						
649
Reorganisation and transformation costs					
671

895
455

						
1,320

1,350

The above costs relate to the reorganisation of operations in Watford, Guildford and Tewkesbury in the UK and certain operations in the Middle
East. This has included the cost of integrating these operations into other Group sites. The nature of the costs incurred principally relate to
redundancy and related costs, property, systems and certain one off contract costs.
5

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Fees payable to the Company’s Auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts			
34
Fees payable to the Company’s Auditors and its associates for other services:
– the audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation			
117
– other services						
101
– tax services						
71

29

						
323

224

Amounts paid to the auditors included above for other services and not expensed through the income statement amounted to £nil
(12 months to 31 May 2009: £nil).

96
12
87
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Profit from operations
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000
Profit from operations is stated after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets						
1,071
Depreciation of property, plant & equipment					
775
Research and development expenditure					
1,341
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense					
21,653
Rental payments under operating leases:
– plant, machinery and vehicles						
1,428
– other						
1,012

33–83 

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

602
538
1,414
16,177
927
661

7

Directors’ and key management personnel remuneration
The Directors consider that the key management personnel of the business comprises of its Board of Directors, whose remuneration is shown on
pages 30 and 31 of the Report of the Directors.

8

Employee information
The average number of persons (including executive Directors) employed by the Group during the period was:
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
Number

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
Number

Class of business (see note 2)
Integration & Managed Services						
218
Network Systems						
53
Mobile Systems						
51
Industrial Systems						
55
Research & Development						
22
Central						
9

250
53
70
53
20
9

						
408

455

						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Staff costs (for the above persons)
Wages and salaries						
19,997
Social security costs						
2,293
Pension costs						
731
Share-based payments charge						
249

15,627
1,654
439
7

						
23,270

17,727
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Finance income
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Bank interest receivable						
14
Expected return on pension scheme assets					
394
Interest receivable on tax repayments					
33

157
276
119

						
441

552

10 Finance costs
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Interest payable on bank overdrafts						
8
Other interest payable						
13
Interest on pension scheme liabilities					
394

5
6
276

						
415

287

11 Taxation
Tax charge
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Current taxation:
UK tax						
267
Overseas tax						
418
Adjustments in respect of prior periods					
(617)

250
19
(154)

Total current tax						
68

115

Deferred taxation:
Origination and reversal of temporary differences					
Adjustments in respect of prior periods				

204
(107)

(67)
310

Total deferred tax						
243

97

						
311

212
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11 Taxation (continued)
Reconciliation of tax charge for the period
The corporation tax assessed for the period differs from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 28% (12 months ended 31 May 2009:
28%). The differences are explained below:
						
18 months
12 months
						
ended
ended
						
30 November
31 May
						
2010
2009
						
£’000
£’000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax					

1,171

471

Tax on profit on ordinary activities before tax at standard rate of 28% (12 months
ended 31 May 2009: 28%)						
328
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes and temporary differences				
180
Other temporary differences						
(23)
US profits taxed at higher rate						
103
Tax losses not recognised						
24
Release of deferred tax asset						
–
Rate change on deferred tax balance					
6
Adjustment in respect of prior periods					
(307)

155
(54)
7
–
233
–
(261)

Total tax charge for the period						
311

212

132

Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Emergency Budget on 22 June 2010 announced that the UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 28% to 24% over a period of four years from
2011. The first reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 28% to 27% was substantively enacted on 20 July 2010 and will be effective from
1 April 2011. This will reduce the Company’s future current tax charge accordingly. It has not yet been possible to quantify the full anticipated
effect of the announced further 3% rate reduction, although this will further reduce the Company’s future current tax charge and reduce the
Company’s deferred tax liabilities/assets accordingly.
Deferred tax asset
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

At start of period						
414
Charge to income statement						
(243)
Currency translation adjustment						
5

502
(97)
9

At end of period						
176

414
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11 Taxation (continued)
The deferred taxation balances comprise:
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Fixed asset temporary differences						
(105)
Other temporary differences					
88
Tax losses						
193

269
(42)
187

						
176

414

The Group has tax losses available to be carried forward for offset against the future taxable profits of certain Group companies amounting to
approximately £1.4 million (31 May 2009: £1.5 million). A deferred tax asset in respect of these losses, amounting to £0.2 million (31 May 2009:
£0.2 million), has been recognised at the period end as the Group believes that there will be future taxable profits against which the losses will
be relieved.
In addition to the above, the Group has capital losses of approximately £19 million (31 May 2009: £19 million) available for offset against future
taxable gains. No deferred tax asset in respect of these losses, which would amount to £5 million, has been recognised in these financial
statements as there is insufficient certainty that the asset will be recovered against future capital gains.
12 Dividends
The following dividends were paid by the Company during the period:
18 months ended
30 November 2010
				
Pence per		
				
share
£’000
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year but not recognised
as liabilities in that year				
4.5
Interim dividends paid in respect of current period:			
2.5
				
2.5

791
439
439

12 months ended
31 May 2009
Pence per
share
£’000

4.5
2.5
–

699
388
–

					
1,669		1,087
Proposed final dividend for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010
(12 months ended 31 May 2009)				

4.5

791

4.5

782

The proposed final dividend for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010 has not been approved by shareholders and as such has not been
included as a liability as at 30 November 2010. Subject to approval, this is expected to be paid on 9 May 2011 to shareholders on the register at
18 March 2011. This will give a total dividend for the 18 month period of 9.5p (12 months to 31 May 2009: 7.0p).
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13 Earnings per Ordinary share
						
18 months
						
ended
						
30 November
						
2010
						
Pence per
						
share

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
Pence per
share

Basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share					

5.5

1.7

Underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share					

13.3

8.2

Underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share					

13.2

8.2

Basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share
The calculation of basic earnings per Ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation for the period of £860,000 (12 months to 31 May 2009:
£259,000) and on 15,528,934 shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue and ranking for dividend during the period
(12 months to 31 May 2009: 15,528,934).
The calculation of diluted earnings per Ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation for the period of £860,000 (12 months to 31 May 2009:
£259,000) and on 15,612,180 shares, being the weighted average number of shares that would be in issue after conversion of all the dilutive
potential Ordinary shares into Ordinary shares (12 months to 31 May 2009: 15,528,934).
						
Weighted
						
average
Earnings per
					
Profit after
number of
Ordinary
					
tax
Ordinary
share
					
£’000
shares
p per share
18 months ended 30 November 2010
Basic earnings per Ordinary share					
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options			

860
–

15,528,934
83,246

5.5
–

Diluted earnings per Ordinary share					

860

15,612,180

5.5

12 months ended 31 May 2009
Basic earnings per Ordinary share					
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options			

259
–

15,528,934
–

1.7
–

Diluted earnings per Ordinary share					

259

15,528,934

1.7
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13 Earnings per Ordinary share (continued)
Underlying basic and diluted earnings per Ordinary share
The calculation of underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share, which the Directors consider gives a useful additional indication of the underlying
performance of the Group, is based on the profit after taxation for the period, but before deducting exceptional reorganisation costs and sharebased payments charge (net of tax) and on 15,528,934 shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue and ranking for dividend
during the period (12 months to 31 May 2009: 15,528,934).
						
Weighted
						
average
Earnings per
					
Profit after
number of
Ordinary
					
tax
Ordinary
share
					
£’000
shares
p per share
18 months ended 30 November 2010
Basic earnings per Ordinary share					
860
Exceptional reorganisation costs					
1,320
Impact of exceptional reorganisation costs on tax charge for the period			
(370)
Share-based payments charge					
249
Impact of share-based payments charge on tax charge for the period			
–

15,528,934
–
–
–
–

5.5
8.5
(2.3)
1.6
–

Underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share				

2,059

15,528,934

13.3

12 months ended 31 May 2009
Basic earnings per Ordinary share					
259
Exceptional reorganisation costs					
1,350
Impact of exceptional reorganisation costs on tax charge for the year			
(342)
Share-based payments charge					7
Impact of share-based payments charge on tax charge for the year			
(2)

15,528,934
–
–
–
–

1.7
8.7
(2.2)
–
–

Underlying basic earnings per Ordinary share				

15,528,934

8.2

1,272

The calculation of underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share is based on the profit after taxation for the period, but before deducting
exceptional reorganisation costs and share-based payments charge (net of tax) and on 15,612,180 shares being the weighted average number
of shares that would be in issue after conversion of all the dilutive potential Ordinary shares into Ordinary shares (12 months to 31 May 2009:
15,528,934).
						
Weighted
						
average
Earnings per
					
Profit after
number of
Ordinary
					
tax
Ordinary
share
					
£’000
shares
p per share
18 months ended 30 November 2010
Underlying earnings per Ordinary share				
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options			

2,059
–

15,528,934
83,246

13.3
(0.1)

Underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share				

2,059

15,612,180

13.2

12 months ended 31 May 2009
Underlying earnings per Ordinary share				
Dilutive potential Ordinary shares arising from share options			

1,272
–

15,528,934
–

8.2
–

Underlying diluted earnings per Ordinary share				

1,272

15,528,934

8.2
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Freehold
				
land and
				
buildings
				£’000

Short
Plant,
leasehold equipment and
improvements motor vehicles
£’000
£’000
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Total
£’000

Cost:
At 1 June 2008				
290
Additions				 21
Disposals				 –
Currency translation adjustment				
–

1,025
25
(73)
2

3,380
418
(749)
37

4,695
464
(822)
39

At 31 May 2009				
311
Additions				 –
Disposals				–
Currency translation adjustment				
–

979
52
–
–

3,086
441
(186)
9

4,376
493
(186)
9

311

1,031

3,350

4,692

17
6
–
–

271
86
(31)
–

2,456
446
(694)
10

2,744
538
(725)
10

At 31 May 2009				
23
Charge for the period				
10
Disposals				–
Currency translation adjustment				
–

326
124
–
–

2,218
641
(158)
5

2,567
775
(158)
5

At 30 November 2010				

33

450

2,706

3,189

Net book value:
At 30 November 2010				

278

581

644

1,503

At 31 May 2009				

288

653

868

1,809

At 30 November 2010				
Depreciation:
At 1 June 2008				
Charge for the period				
Disposals				
Currency translation adjustment				

55
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15	Intangible assets
					
Capitalised
					
development
				
Goodwill
costs
				£’000
£’000

Purchased
software
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost:
At 1 June 2008				
16,104
Additions				 –
Disposals				–
Currency translation adjustment				
328

1,553
174
–
–

806
67
(157)
1

18,463
241
(157)
329

At 31 May 2009				
16,432
Additions				 –
Deferred consideration adjustment (note 21)			
(663)
Currency translation adjustment				
22

1,727
891
–
–

717
210
–
–

18,876
1,101
(663)
22

At 30 November 2010				

15,791

2,618

927

19,336

Amortisation:
At 1 June 2008				
–
Charge for the year				
–
Disposals				–

15
449
–

510
153
(154)

525
602
(154)

At 31 May 2009				
Charge for the period				

–
–

464
878

509
193

973
1,071

At 30 November 2010				

–

1,342

702

2,044

Net book value:
At 30 November 2010				

15,791

1,276

225

17,292

At 31 May 2009				

16,432

1,263

208

17,903

Annual test for impairment of goodwill
During the period, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill by comparing it to the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which it relates. The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash-generating units as follows:
						
30 November
31 May
						
2010
2009
						
£’000
£’000
Integration & Managed Services						
4,580
Network Systems						
2,403
Mobile Systems						
4,608
Industrial Systems						
4,200

4,580
3,044
4,608
4,200

15,791

16,432

					

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units is determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets and business plans approved by the Directors covering a three year period. Cash flows beyond that period have been
extrapolated using a steady 2.25% per annum growth rate, which the Directors consider to be specific to the business and does not exceed the
UK post-war real annual average growth in GDP and is therefore considered appropriate to apply to each of the cash-generating units.
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15	Intangible assets (continued)
The key assumptions used in the cash flow projections are as follows:
XX No material changes in working capital
XX Pre-tax discount rates:

						
30 November
						
2010
						
%

31 May
2009
%

Integration & Managed Services					
10.6%
Network Systems					
9.9%
Mobile Systems						
9.7%
Industrial Systems						
9.3%

8.3%
8.3%
8.3%
8.3%

The assumptions have been reviewed in light of the current economic environment which has resulted in a more conservative estimate about
the future. The Directors believe that, based on sensitivity analysis performed, even in the current economic conditions any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts are based would not cause the cash-generating units’ carrying amount to
exceed the recoverable amount.
16	Investment in joint venture
							
£’000
Cost at 1 June 2009							
55
Amounts written off							
(55)
Cost at 30 November 2010							
–

The carrying value of the investment in joint venture has been written off following the Group’s decision to reorganise its activities in the
Middle East.
17	Inventories
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Raw materials and consumables						
4,057
Finished goods for resale					
1,771

2,430
2,810

						
5,828
Contract balances					
69

5,240
103

						
5,897

5,343

						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Contract balances comprise:
Net costs incurred						
69

103
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18 Trade and other receivables
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Trade receivables						
14,049
Allowance for doubtful debts						
(767)

14,066
(475)

						
13,282
Amounts recoverable on contracts					
7,890
Other receivables						
338
Prepayments and accrued income					
1,001

13,591
7,370
165
1,377

						
22,511

22,503

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally have a 30 to 90 day term. At 30 November 2010 the Group had 58 days sales outstanding
in trade receivables (31 May 2009: 61 days).
Due to their short maturities, the fair value of trade and other receivables approximates to their book value.
Movement in allowance for doubtful debts
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

At start of period						
475
Doubtful debts charge recognised in the period				
363
Amounts written off as uncollectable					
(71)

289
269
(83)

At end of period						
767

475

As at 30 November 2010, trade receivables of £5,079,000 (31 May 2009: £5,246,000) were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables is as follows:
						
30 November
31 May
						
2010
2009
						
£’000
£’000
3,617
1,309
153

4,523
413
310

						
5,079

5,246

19 Cash and cash equivalents
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

3,349

8,111

Up to three months past due						
Three to six months past due					
Over six months past due					

Cash at bank and in hand					

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents approximates to their book values.
Cash at bank earns interest based on the daily bank base rate.
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20 Trade and other payables
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Trade payables						
6,185
Other taxation and social security						
1,012
Other payables						
188
Accruals and deferred income					
10,871

10,252
913
62
10,540

						
18,256

21,767

Due to their short maturities, the fair value of trade and other payables approximates to their book value.
21 Provisions
				
Deferred
				
consideration
				£’000

Restructuring
£’000

Property
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 June 2008				
Utilised in year				
Charge to income statement				
Currency translation adjustment				

913
(382)
–
224

–
–
776
–

158
(31)
2
–

1,071
(413)
778
224

At 31 May 2009				
Utilised in period				
Charge to income statement				
Deferred consideration adjustment				
Currency translation adjustment				

755
(79)
–
(663)
(13)

776
(2,001)
1,320
–
–

129
(103)
16
–
–

1,660
(2,183)
1,336
(663)
(13)

At 30 November 2010				

–

95

42

137

Provisions have been analysed between current and non-current as follows:
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Current						
112
Non-current						
25

1,585
75

						
137

1,660

It is anticipated that the provisions carried forward at 30 November 2010 will be utilised within the following timescales:
							
Number of years
Restructuring provision							
one
Property costs provision for the future costs of empty leasehold properties and dilapidations			

seven

In May 2005, the Group acquired the trade and net assets of AlphaPoint LLC, a specialist provider of digital surveillance technology in North
America, for a total consideration of up to $3.3 million, made up of $1.3 million in cash and Ordinary shares of the Company, plus a further amount
in cash, capped at $2 million, which was dependent on the future profits of the business. Following the conclusion of the earn-out period surplus
provisions for deferred consideration of £0.7 million have been credited back to goodwill.
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21 Provisions (continued)
The restructuring provision primarily relates to redundancy and related costs and costs of rationalising certain properties which have not been
spent in the period.
In addition, the Group has a number of properties where the Directors believe that dilapidation costs may be incurred or where the property
is sublet and the Directors believe that they may not be able to fully recover future rental costs, and therefore appropriate cost provisions have
been made.
22 Called up share capital AND RESERVES
The number of authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid shares is as follows:
			

30 November 2010
Number
£’000

31 May 2009
Number
£’000

Ordinary shares of 20p each
Authorised			

25,000,000

5,000

25,000,000

5,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid			

17,569,744

3,514

16,907,434

3,382

The holders of Ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Group.
The merger reserve has been created in accordance with sections 612 and 613 of the Companies Act 2006 whereby the premium on Ordinary
shares in the Company issued to acquire shares has been credited to the merger reserve rather than the share premium account.
The cost of own shares held within the ExSOP of £4,209,207 (31 May 2009: £nil) has been deducted from other reserves. The nominal value of
these shares is £408,164 (31 May 2009: £nil). The cost of own shares held within the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme at 31 May 2009
was £3,209,000 and was deducted from other reserves. The nominal value of these shares was £275,700 at 31 May 2009. Other reserves also
includes a capital redemption reserve of £8,000 (31 May 2009: £8,000).
23 Options over shares of Quadnetics Group plc
The Group operated five share schemes in the period: the Quadnetics Group EMI Share Option Scheme, the Protec plc EMI Share Option Scheme,
the Protec plc AESOP Scheme, the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme and the Quadnetics Executive Shared Ownership Plan (“ExSOP”).
The ExSOP was formed in July 2009 to replace the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme.
Quadnetics Group EMI Share Option Scheme
The Quadnetics EMI Scheme was adopted on 27 December 2001. It is administered by the Board but is now closed as the size of the Group
exceeds the limits imposed by HM Revenue & Customs.
Options outstanding at 30 November 2010 are exercisable as follows, subject to the holder still being employed by the Group at the time
of exercise:
						
Option
Number of
Date granted					
Exercise dates
price
options
11 April 2003					 11 April 2005 – 10 April 2013
5 March 2004					
5 March 2006 – 4 March 2014
30 September 2004					 30 September 2006 – 29 September 2014

135.0p
300.0p
280.0p

10,000
150,833
10,715

Outstanding options at 30 November 2010						

171,548

There were no movements during the period.
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23 Options over shares of Quadnetics Group plc (continued)
Protec plc EMI Share Option Scheme
The Protec plc EMI Share Option Scheme was adopted on 9 May 2001. It is administered by the Board but the Scheme was closed to new
members on 31 December 2005 following the acquisition of Protec plc by Quadnetics Group plc. The holders of Protec EMI options at the time of
the acquisition were able to elect to convert these options into options of the same value over Ordinary shares in Quadnetics Group plc in a ratio
of 1 Quadnetics share for every 43 Protec shares. As a result, former Protec EMI option holders held options over a further 7,557 Ordinary shares at
30 November 2010, which were exercisable as follows, subject to the holder still being employed by the Group at the time of exercise:
						
Option
Date granted					
Exercise dates
price
23 May 2001					
23 May 2004 – 22 May 2011
16 April 2002					
16 April 2005 – 15 April 2012
18 November 2003					 18 November 2006 – 17 November 2013

Number of
options

301.0p
163.4p
516.0p

5,232
1,744
581

Outstanding options at 30 November 2010						

7,557

Protec plc AESOP Scheme
The Protec plc AESOP Scheme was adopted on 9 May 2001 but was closed to new members and contributions ceased on 31 December 2005
following the acquisition of Protec plc by Quadnetics Group plc. The holders of shares in the Scheme at the time of the acquisition were able to elect
to convert these shares into Ordinary shares of the same value in Quadnetics Group plc in a ratio of 1 Quadnetics share for every 43 Protec shares.
Shares can be withdrawn from the Scheme by the employee at any time, subject to forfeiture of half the related matching shares if withdrawal is
made prior to the third anniversary of the grant date. Between the third and fifth anniversary of the grant date, withdrawals can be made penaltyfree but are subject to income tax; withdrawals after the fifth anniversary of the grant date can be made in full and are tax free. Employees who
leave the Group are required to withdraw all of their shares in the Scheme and are subject to the same rules.
The Scheme holds 52,096 Ordinary shares at 30 November 2010, which were acquired by the Scheme trustee as follows:
						
30 November
				
Fifth		
2010
				
anniversary of
Purchase
Number
Effective date of purchase				 the grant date
price
of shares

31 May
2009
Number
of shares

3,814
6,279
5,602
3,503
2,853
3,716
8,866
8,483
8,623
357

8,419
14,965
13,561
8,776
7,346
10,521
23,293
21,848
17,810
787

Shares held at end of period						
52,096

127,326

1 January 2002				
1 July 2002				
1 January 2003				
1 July 2003				
1 January 2004				
1 July 2004				
1 January 2005				
1 July 2005				
1 January 2006				
31 March 2006 (reinvestment of dividend)			

1 January 2007
1 July 2007
1 January 2008
1 July 2008
1 January 2009
1 July 2009
1 January 2010
1 July 2010
1 January 2011
31 March 2011

258.0p
172.0p
193.5p
311.8p
454.2p
402.1p
188.1p
188.1p
209.0p
260.0p

At 30 November 2010 the shares held by the Protec plc AESOP Scheme had a market value of £93,000 (31 May 2009: £167,000).
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23 Options over shares of Quadnetics Group plc (continued)
Movements during the period were as follows:
							
Number
							
of shares
Shares held at 1 June 2009							
127,326
Withdrawals by employees who left the Group during the period					
(67,331)
Other withdrawals							
(7,899)
Shares held at 30 November 2010						

52,096

At 31 December 2010 the Scheme reached maturity following its closure in 2005, and all shares held in the Scheme will be transferred beneficially
to the relevant employees.
Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme
Details of Ordinary shares held by the Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme are as follows:
							
Number
							
of shares
Shares held at 1 June 2009							
Shares surrendered on 7 July 2009							

1,378,500
(1,378,500)

Shares held at 30 November 2010						

–

All the shares held in the Scheme were surrendered on 7 July 2009 as explained below.
Group Executive Shared Ownership Plan
A new Group Executive Shared Ownership Plan (the "ExSOP") was formed in July 2009 to replace the above Quadnetics Group Employee Share
Scheme.
Under the provisions of the ExSOP, shares (the "ExSOP shares") are jointly owned by nominated senior employees and by an employees’ share trust,
on terms, similar to a share option scheme, whereby the value of appreciation in the Company’s share price over a minimum three year period
accrues to the relevant employee, provided the Company meets certain performance thresholds. In summary, none of the awarded ExSOP shares
will vest unless the total return (dividends plus share price appreciation) on the Company’s shares is better than the performance of the FTSE AIM
All Share Total Return Index over the three-year period from award. The shares will vest fully if the Company’s performance beats the index by
more than five percentage points over that period, with pro-rata vesting for out performance up to five percent. The performance thresholds are
identical to those under the previous Quadnetics Group Employee Share Scheme.
In order to establish the ExSOP 462,310 new Ordinary shares of 20p each in the Company were allotted to the corporate trustee of the new plan
at £1.475 each being the mid-market price of the Company’s Ordinary shares immediately prior to the allotment. The substantial majority of the
funding for subscription for the new shares was provided by a loan facility to the share trust by the Company. In addition the corporate trustee of
the new plan acquired 1.4 million shares held in the existing Employee Share Plan at a price of £1.475 per share, again financed by the loan facility
provided by the Company. It is intended that this loan will ultimately be repaid following a sale of the ExSOP shares in the market once the threeyear qualification requirements and performance criteria have been met.
As a result of the allotment of the new shares together the purchase of shares held in the Employee Share Scheme, 1,840,810 shares were held in
the ExSOP at an issue price of £1.475.
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23 Options over shares of Quadnetics Group plc (continued)
In September 2009, 200,000 new Ordinary shares of 20p each in the Company were allotted to the corporate trustee of the plan at £1.59 each
being the mid-market price of the Company’s Ordinary shares immediately prior to the allotment. Again, the substantial majority of the funding for
subscription for the new shares was provided by a loan facility to the share trust by the Company and it is intended that this loan will ultimately be
repaid following a sale of the ExSOP shares in the market once the three-year qualification requirements and performance criteria have been met.
						
Relevant share
					
Exercise
price at date
Date granted					
dates
of grant

Number
of shares

7 July 2009					
8 July 2012 onwards
147.5p
18 September 2009					
19 September 2012 onwards
159.0p
Balance of shares in respect of leavers						

1,458,959
200,000
381,851

							
2,040,810

24 Share-based payment charge
The fair value of services received in return for share options granted or awards made under the Group’s share schemes are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted or share scheme shares awarded.
For the equity settled options granted during the period, the estimate of the fair value of the services received for accounting purposes is
measured based on an adjusted Black–Scholes model using the following assumptions:
					
July		
September
					
2009		
2009
					
awards		
awards
Number of jointly owned shares awarded			
1,840,810
Share price on date of award				
£1.510
Amount paid by employee for each ExSOP award			
0.2p
Carrying cost				 1.75% of the initial market value
Volatility				
35%
Expected dividend yield				
0%
Risk free interest rate				
2.4%
Anticipated exercise date				
8 July 2012
Expected life of ExSOP				
3 years

200,000
£1.605
0.2p
1.25% of the initial market value
35%
0%
2.0%
19 September 2012
3 years

For the equity settled options granted during prior years, the estimate of the fair value of the services received was measured based on a
Black–Scholes option pricing model using the following assumptions:
							
31 May 2009
Weighted average share price							
207.1p
Exercise price							
219.8p
Expected volatility							
35%
Option life							
3.25 years
Dividend yield							
2.86%
Risk free interest rate (based on Government bonds)						
4.78%

The expected volatility is wholly based on the historic volatility.
Share options are granted under a service condition and also, for grants to employees under the ExSOP, a performance measure based around the
Company’s share price relative to the FTSE AIM All Share Total Return Index.
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24 Share-based payment charge (continued)
The total charge recognised for the period arising from share-based payments are as follows:
							
18 months
							
ended
						 30 November
						
2010
					
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Equity-settled share-based payments					
249

7

–

–

Total carrying value of liabilities						

25 Contingent liabilities
Certain subsidiary companies have agreed to guarantee a number of bank bonds, issued by Barclays Bank PLC and Lloyds TSB Bank plc, amounting
to a total of £1.5 million at 30 November 2010 (31 May 2009: £1.4 million). At 30 November 2010, the Group had placed no cash on deposit
(31 May 2009: £0.3 million) as collateral against these guarantees.
26 Related party transactions
1) Sales in the period of £nil (12 months ended 31 May 2009: £315) were made to Trafficland, Inc., of which DJ Coghlan is a Director and
shareholder. The balance owed by Trafficland, Inc. at 30 November 2010 was £nil (31 May 2009: £nil).
2)

Sales in the period of £1,319,292 (12 months ended 31 May 2009: £888,480) were made to Coex Services Asia Pte Ltd, in which the Group has
an investment (original cost: £8,000 now fully written down), but does not exercise any influence. The balance owed by Coex Services Asia Pte
Ltd at 30 November 2010 was £58,101 (31 May 2009: £387,448).

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this note. The principal subsidiaries and divisions within the Group are listed on page 81.
All transactions with related parties were at arm’s length.
27 Capital commitments
At the period end capital commitments not provided for in these financial statements amounted to £nil (31 May 2009: £nil).
28 Operating lease commitments
The Group had total outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as
follows:
						
30 November
31 May
						
2010
2009
						
£’000
£’000
Within one year						
1,207
Within two to five years					
2,714
In excess of five years						
1,809

1,303
2,157
1,385

						
5,730

4,845

The Group’s lease commitments primarily relate to land and buildings and vehicles.
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29 Pension commitments
The Group operates a defined benefit pension scheme and a number of defined contribution schemes.
a) Defined benefit scheme
The Company operates the Quadrant Group plc Retirement Benefit Scheme. This scheme includes both a defined benefits section in respect
of past employees of the Group and a defined contributions section in respect of one current employee. The accrual of benefits in the defined
benefit sections ceased in 1996 and the liabilities relate only to members with preserved benefits or pensions in payment. A full actuarial valuation
was carried out by a qualified independent actuary, independent of the scheme’s sponsoring employer, as at 1 July 2007 and the preliminary
results of the 1 July 2010 actuarial valuation have been issued to the Trustees. These results have been updated on an approximate basis to
30 November 2010. The major assumptions used by the actuary are shown below.
The Company has paid contributions of £45,000 in the period.
The disclosures below relate to the defined benefits section, with the contributions to the defined contributions section being disclosed in
section b).
It is the policy of the Company to recognise all actuarial gains and losses in the year in which they occur outside the income statement in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligations
							
18 months
							
ended
						 30 November
						
2010
					
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Defined benefit obligations at start of period					
4,322
Interest cost						
416
Actuarial losses/(gains)						
493
Benefits paid						
(346)

4,377
276
(59)
(272)

Defined benefit obligations at end of period					
4,885

4,322

		
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
							
18 months
							
ended
						 30 November
						
2010
					
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Fair value of plan assets at start of period					
4,339
Expected return on assets						
394
Actuarial gains/(losses)						
597
Contributions by the Company						
45
Benefits paid						
(346)

4,669
276
(352)
18
(272)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period				

4,339

5,029
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29 Pension commitments (continued)
Total expense recognised in income statement
							
18 months
							
ended
						 30 November
						
2010
					
£’000
Expected return on plan assets						
394
Interest cost						
(394)

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000
276
(276)

Total expense recognised in income statement					
–

–

Gains/(losses) recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
							
18 months
							
ended
						 30 November
						
2010
					
£’000

12 months
ended
31 May
2009
£’000

Difference between expected and actual return on plan assets				
Experience gains and losses arising on the defined benefit obligations				
Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit obligations					

597
124

(352)
–

(617)

59

Total actuarial gains and losses (before restriction due to some of the surplus not being recognisable)		
Effect of limit on amount of surplus recognised due to some of the surplus not being recognisable		

104
(104)

(293)
293

Total amount recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

–

–

The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income since the adoption of
IAS 19 is £nil.
Assets
				 30 November
					
2010
				
Fair value of
				
plan assets
				
£’000

31 May
2009
Fair value of
plan assets
£’000

31 May
2008
Fair value of
plan assets
£’000

Equity					
17
Bonds					
5,011
Cash					
1

11
4,321
7

36
4,059
574

Total assets					
5,029

4,339

4,669

As at 30 November 2010, the fair value of the assets shown above include holdings of £17,318 in Quadnetics Group plc shares which constitute
employer-related investments. There are no further amounts in assets which represent the Company’s own financial instruments or any property
occupied by, or other assets used by, the Company.
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29 Pension commitments (continued)
Actual return on plan assets
The actual return on the plan assets over the period ending 30 November 2010 was £991,000.
Principal actuarial assumptions
					
30 November
				
2010
				 % per annum

31 May
2009
% per annum

31 May
2008
% per annum

Inflation					
3.60%
Rate of discount					
5.50%
Allowance for pension in payment increases				
2.50%
Allowance for revaluation of deferred pensions of RPI or 5% p.a. if less			
3.60%
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement			
–

3.70%
6.60%
2.50%
3.70%
–

3.90%
6.50%
2.50%
3.90%
–

The mortality assumptions adopted at 30 November 2010 imply the following life expectancies at age 65:
							
Years
Male currently age 40							
23.3
Female currently age 40							
26.1
Male currently age 65							
22.1
Female currently age 65							
25.0

Present value of defined benefit obligations, fair value of assets and surplus
					
30 November
				
2010
				
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

31 May
2008
£’000

4,339
4,322
17
(17)

4,669
4,377
292
(292)

–

–

–

31 May
2009
£’000

31 May
2008
£’000

31 May
2007
£’000

31 May
2006
£’000

5,029
4,885

4,339
4,322

4,669
4,377

4,915
4,459

5,151
4,619

Surplus in plan			
144

17

292

456

532

597
124

(352)
–

(326)
(48)

(303)
–

(2)
–

Fair value of plan assets					
5,029
Present value of defined benefit obligations				
4,885
Surplus in plan					
144
Unrecognised surplus					
(144)
Asset/(liability) to be recognised					

Best estimate of contributions to be paid to plan for the year ending 30 November 2011
The Company estimates that £30,000 will be paid to the plan during the year ending 30 November 2011.
History of experience gains and losses
		
30 November
			
2010
			
£’000
Fair value of plan assets			
Present value of defined benefit obligations		

Experience adjustment on plan assets		
Experience adjustment on defined benefit obligations		
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29 Pension commitments (continued)
Expected long-term rates of return
The long-term expected rate of return on cash is determined by reference to the rate of return of gilts at the balance sheet dates. The long-term
expected return on bonds is determined by reference to UK long dated government and corporate bond yields at the balance sheet date. The
long-term expected rate of return on equities is based on the rate of return on bonds with an allowance for out-performance.
The expected long-term rates of return applicable for each period are as follows:
						
Period
						
commencing
						
1 June
						
2009
						 % per annum

Period
commencing
1 June
2008
% per annum

Equity						
8.00%
Bonds						
6.20%
Cash						
4.20%
Overall for scheme						
6.20%

8.00%
6.20%
5.00%
6.07%

b) Defined contribution schemes
There are also a number of other defined contribution pension schemes operated by various companies within the Group. The Group’s total
expense for these other schemes in the period was £681,000 (12 months ended 31 May 2009: £439,000).
30 Financial instruments
Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to shareholders. The
capital structure of the Group consists of cash held in interest bearing current accounts (note 19) and equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent, comprising issued capital (note 22), reserves and retained earnings. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.
Financial risk management objectives
Financial risks include market risk (principally foreign currency risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and interest risk. The Group seeks to minimise the
effect of these risks by developing and consistently applying Board approved policies and procedures. Such policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed for their appropriateness and effectiveness to deal with the changing nature of financial risks. The Group’s principal financial instruments
comprise cash held in current accounts, trade receivables, amounts recoverable under contracts, other receivables, trade payables and other
payables that arise directly from its operations.
Foreign currency risk
The Group operates internationally giving rise to exposure from changes in foreign exchange rates, with the US dollar, the euro and the Saudi
Arabian riyal being the main foreign currencies in which the Group operates. The Group’s policy is to manage transaction exposure in respect
of the Group’s UK subsidiaries through the use of forward exchange contracts, which are entered into in respect of forecast foreign currency
transactions when the amount and timing of such forecast transactions becomes reasonably certain. At 30 November 2010 the Group had the
following commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts:
		
30 Nov		 30 Nov		 30 Nov		 31 May		 31 May		 31 May
		
2010		2010		2010		2009		2009		2009
Average		Average		Average		Average		Average		Average
2010
rate
2010
rate
2010
rate
2009
rate
2009
rate
2009
rate
$’000
$:£
€’000
€:£	
SAR ’000
SAR:£
$’000
$:£
€’000
€:£
SAR ’000
SAR:£
Forward sales
883
Forward purchases
–

1.53
–

420
–

1.21
–

–
–

–
–

2,319
972

1.55
1.51

791
–

1.14
–

2,700
–

5.61
–
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30 Financial instruments (continued)
The fair value of these forward exchange contracts is not considered to be materially different to the value determined in the contracts.
$83,000 of the forward sale contracts mature in more than one year with an average exchange rate of 1.51, all other forward contracts mature
within the next year.
At 30 November 2010, the Group entities based in the UK had the following forecast foreign currency transactions during the next two years
which have not been hedged, principally due to either natural hedges being available of receipts against payments or to significant uncertainty
over the timing of the transactions:
				
30 November 30 November
31 May
31 May
				
2010
2010
2009
2009
				
$’000
€’000
$’000
€’000
Receipts				
261

–

261

258

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in exchange rates on the translation of profits earned by its US subsidiary. These profits are translated at
average exchange rates for the period which is an approximation to rates at the date of transaction. The Group’s US subsidiary accounts for
approximately 1% (31 May 2009: 2%) of the Group’s net assets. Translation exposure in respect of these assets is not hedged.
At 30 November 2010 the Group held cash balances of $1,617,000 (31 May 2009: $989,000), the majority of which was held by the Group’s US
subsidiary as working capital, €98,000 (31 May 2009: €32,000) and SAR 58,000 (31 May 2009: SAR 57,000).
It is estimated that a 10% fall in the year end US dollar exchange rate would have increased profits by £42,000 (12 months ended 31 May 2009:
£nil) and equity by £42,000 (12 months ended 31 May 2009: £71,000). A 10% fall in the year end euro exchange rate would not have a material
impact on either profits or equity.
The table below shows the extent to which the Group had monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than the local currency of the
company in which they are recorded. Foreign exchange differences on the retranslation of these assets and liabilities are recognised in the Group
income statement.
Functional currency of Group operation
30 November 2010
31 May 2009
				
Sterling	USD
Sterling
USD
				
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
GPB			
–
US dollars				
1,267
Euros			
96
Canadian dollars			
–

51
–
–
48

–
2,920
251
–

–
–
–
–

1,363

99

3,171

–

Total			

Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, resulting in financial
loss to the Group, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and interest bearing current accounts. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit using information supplied by independent rating agencies where available. The Group also uses other publicly available
information and its own trading records to rate major customers. The credit risk on current accounts is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
At the balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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30 Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group does not have sufficient cash to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group ensures that
sufficient cash and undrawn facilities are available to fund ongoing operations and to meet its medium term capital and funding obligations, and
to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities.
At the period end, the Group had net funds of:
						
30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Short term bank deposits						
–
Current accounts						
3,349

7,019
1,092

						
3,349

8,111

The level of the Group’s bank overdraft facilities is reviewed annually and at 30 November 2010 the Group had undrawn facilities of up to
£4 million, on which interest would be payable at the rate of bank base rate + 2%.
All financial liabilities of the Group, principally comprising of trade creditors, fall due for payment within 12 months of the balance sheet date
(31 May 2009: 12 months).
Due to the significant amount of cash held in current accounts, taken together with the undrawn bank overdraft facility, the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk at 30 November 2010 and 31 May 2009 was negligible.
Interest risk
Interest bearing assets comprise cash held in current accounts, earning interest at bank base rate. During the period these bank deposits bore
interest at a rate of between 0.5% and 0.6% against base rate of 0.5% (2009: 0.3% and 5.5% against base rate of between 0.5% and 5.0%). The
Group benchmarks the rates being obtained in order to maximise its returns, within the credit risk framework referred to above.
The Group’s financial liabilities are all non-interest bearing.
The Group’s funds did not carry any significant interest rate risk at 30 November 2010 and 31 May 2009.
A 1% fall in interest rates would have reduced profit for the period and equity by £7,000 (2009: £50,000).
31 Post balance sheet event
On 22 December 2010 Synectic Systems Group Limited (“SSGL”) acquired the entire issued share capital of Persides Technology Limited (“PTL”) for
a total consideration of £230,000 in cash and the trade and assets of PTL were hived up to SSGL at fair value.
PTL specialises in advanced battlefield electronic monitoring systems (EMS) and ruggedized hand-held digital video systems (VEEcam®) for use in
extreme environments, and was a technology partner to the Group’s defence business, playing an important role in the development of Synectics’
latest generation radio frequency detection system, Chili.
Due to the proximity of the acquisition to the period end the fair value exercise has not yet been completed.
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Company Balance Sheet
30 November 2010

						
30 November
						
2010
						
Notes
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Fixed assets
Goodwill					5
Plant, equipment and motor vehicles					
6
Investments in subsidiary undertakings					
7
Investment in joint venture					
8

–
53
18,715
–

4,173
205
17,317
55

							
18,768

21,750

Current assets
Stocks					9
Debtors					
10

1,336
22,838

–
24,464

						
24,464
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year				
11
(5,851)

24,174
(5,160)

Net current assets						
18,613

19,014

Total assets less current liabilities					
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year				
11
Provisions for liabilities and charges					
12

40,764
(9,702)
(52)

37,381
(6,064)
(16)

Net assets						
31,301

31,010

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital					
13
Share premium account					
14
Merger reserve					
14
Other reserves					
14
Profit and loss account					
14

3,382
14,851
9,565
(2,486)
5,698

3,514
15,719
9,565
(2,118)
4,621

Equity shareholders’ funds						
31,301

31,010

The financial statements on pages 71 to 80 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 4 March 2011 and were signed on
its behalf by:

J Shepherd
Director
Company number: 1740011

NC Poultney
Director
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The principal activity of the Company was to act as a holding company for its trading subsidiaries.
On 1 June 2009 the trade and assets of the Look CCTV division of the Company were transferred at net book value to Synectic Systems Group Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as part of a Group reorganisation.
1

Principal accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom (‘UK GAAP’). A
summary of the more important Company accounting policies, which have been consistently applied is set out below.
a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.
b) Turnover
Turnover, which excludes value added tax and trade discounts, represents the value of goods and services supplied during the year. Income
receivable from maintenance contracts is recognised in turnover on a straight-line basis over the contract term. Income from maintenance
contracts which relates to periods subsequent to the year end is included in creditors as deferred income.
c)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets purchased at the date of acquisition, and is
capitalised as a fixed asset and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of up to 20 years.

d) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis over the
expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned, commencing on the first day of the month after being brought into use. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are 10% – 33%.
e)	Leased assets
Rentals payable under operating leases are written off to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
f)

Stocks and work in progress
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In the case of finished goods, cost includes all direct expenditure and production
overheads based on the normal level of activity. Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving and defective stocks.

g) Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the period and takes into account taxation deferred because of timing differences between
the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes.
Deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay
less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from
the inclusion of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial
statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax balances
are not discounted.
h) Pension costs
Company employees are members of two pension schemes, both of which operate on a money purchase basis. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the profit and loss account as incurred.
The Company also operates a retirement benefit scheme, which has deferred defined benefit members. The expected return on the scheme’s
assets and the expected increase in the present value of the scheme’s liabilities during the period are included in the profit and loss account as
other finance income or charges as appropriate. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses.
Pension scheme liabilities and, to the extent that they are recoverable, pension scheme assets are recognised in the balance sheet and represent
the difference between the market value of the scheme’s assets and the present value of the scheme’s liabilities, net of deferred taxation.

Our Business

 Innovating  Integrating

1

 Protecting

Our Governance
Our Financials

33–83 

Principal accounting policies (continued)
Pension scheme liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and are discounted at a rate using the
current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liability.
i)

Foreign currency
Transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into sterling at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are retranslated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the end of the financial period
or, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate. Exchange differences arising on these transactions are taken to the profit and loss account in
the period in which they arise.

j)

Dividends
Dividends proposed by the Directors and unpaid at the end of the period are not recognised in the financial statements until they have been
approved by shareholders at a General Meeting of the Company. Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid.

k) Employee share schemes
Transactions of the Company-sponsored ExSOP are treated as being those of the Company and are therefore reflected in the Parent Company
financial statements. In particular the scheme’s purchase of shares in the Company are debited directly to equity.
2

Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration is shown on pages 30 and 31 of the Report of the Directors.

3

Employee information
The average number of persons (including executive Directors) employed by the Company during the period was:
Class of business
					 30 November
						
2010
					
Number

31 May
2009
Number

Services						
–
Central						
9

40
9

						
9

49

Staff costs (for the above persons)
					 30 November
						
2010
					
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Wages and salaries						
1,514
Social security costs						
222
Pension costs					
296
Share-based payments charge						
110

2,143
260
157
–

						
2,142

2,560
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4

Dividends
The following dividends were paid by the Company during the period:
		
18 months ended
		
30 November 2010
			
Pence per 		
				
share
£’000
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year but not recognised
as liabilities in that year				
Interim dividends paid in respect of current period:		
			

4.5
2.5
2.5

				
Proposed final dividend for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010
(12 months ended 31 May 2009)				

4.5

791
439
439

12 months ended
31 May 2009
Pence per
share
£’000

4.5
2.5
–

699
388
–

1,669		1,087

791

4.5

782

The proposed final dividend for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010 has not been approved by shareholders and as such has not been
included as a liability as at 30 November 2010. Subject to approval, this is expected to be paid on 9 May 2011 to shareholders on the register at
18 March 2011. This will give a total dividend for the period of 9.5p (12 months to 31 May 2009: 7.0p).
5

Goodwill
							
£’000
Cost:
At 1 June 2009							
5,627
Intra-group transfer							
(5,627)
At 30 November 2010							
–
Amortisation:
At 1 June 2009							
1,454
Intra-group transfer							
(1,454)
At 30 November 2010							
–
Net book value:
At 30 November 2010							
–
At 31 May 2009							
4,173

The intra-group transfer of goodwill arose on the transfer of the Look CCTV division of the Company to Synectic Systems Group Limited in the
period.

Our Business

 Innovating  Integrating

6

 Protecting

Our Governance
Our Financials

33–83 

Plant, equipment and motor vehicles
							
£’000
Cost:
At 1 June 2009							
536
Additions							4
Disposals							
(66)
Intra-group transfers							
(238)
At 30 November 2010							
236
Depreciation:
At 1 June 2009							
331
Charge for the period							
90
Disposals							
(53)
Intra-group transfers							
(185)
At 30 November 2010							
183
Net book value:
At 30 November 2010							
53
At 31 May 2009							
205

7	Investments in subsidiary undertakings
							
£’000
Cost at 1 June 2009							
25,499
Additions:
– Synectic Systems GmbH							9
– Quadrant Security Group Limited							
750
– Synectic Systems Group Limited							
500
– share based payments charge in respect of employees of subsidiary undertakings				
139
At 30 November 2010							
26,897
Provision for impairment as at 1 June 2009 and 30 November 2010					

(8,182)

Net book value:
At 30 November 2010							
18,715
At 31 May 2009							
17,317
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7	Investments in subsidiary undertakings (continued)
At 30 November 2010 the Company held the following direct shareholdings in its subsidiaries which had been active during the period:
Subsidiary and activity
							
Percentage
						
Country of
held at
					
Class of share
Incorporation
30 Nov 2010
Synectic Systems Group Limited					
Design and manufacture of video systems control products, integrated
digital CCTV systems and CCTV equipment and systems for extreme
or hazardous environments
Quadrant Security Group Limited					
Design, installation and maintenance of CCTV security systems and
integrated security systems
SSS Management Services Limited 					
Security management and support services
Synectic Systems, Inc. 					
Design and supply of video systems control products and integrated
digital CCTV systems

Ordinary shares

UK

100%

Ordinary shares

UK

100%

Ordinary shares

UK

100%

Common stock

USA

100%

Details of the principal subsidiaries are shown on page 81.
8	Investment in joint venture
							
£’000
Cost at 1 June 2009							
55
Amounts written off							
(55)
At 30 November 2010							
–

The carrying value of the investment in joint venture has been written off following the Group’s decision to reorganise its activities in the Middle East.
9

Stocks
						 30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Finished goods for resale						
–

1,336
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10 Debtors
						 30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors						
–
Deferred taxation						
34
Other debtors						
56
Amounts due from subsidiaries						
23,856
Corporation tax receivable						
478
Prepayments and accrued income						
40

1,319
49
18
21,061
–
167

						
24,464

22,614

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due from subsidiaries						
–

224

						
24,464

22,838

						 30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Deferred taxation
At 1 June 2009						
49
(Charge)/credit to profit and loss account					
(7)
Transfer from subsidiary company						
(8)

22
27
–

At 30 November 2010						
34

49

The deferred taxation balances comprise:
						 30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Fixed asset timing differences						
29
Other timing differences						
–
Tax losses						
5

31
18
–

						
34

49
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11 Creditors
						 30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

Amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdrafts						
5,202
Trade creditors						
101
Amounts owed to subsidiaries						
363
Corporation tax						
–
Other taxation and social security					
45
Other creditors						
5
Accruals and deferred income						
135

2,733
1,154
48
419
146
40
620

5,851

5,160

6,064

9,702

						
11,915

14,862

						 30 November
						
2010
						
£’000

31 May
2009
£’000

					
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts owed to subsidiaries					

Borrowings
Bank overdrafts repayable within one year				

5,202

2,733

The bank overdrafts are part of a Group offset arrangement and the overall bank balances were positive at 30 November 2010.
12 Provisions
					
Restructuring
					£’000

Property
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 June 2009					
50
Utilised in period					
(50)
Charge to profit and loss account					
–

2
(2)
16

52
(52)
16

At 30 November 2010					

16

16

–

The Company has a property which it currently sublets, where the Directors believe that they may not be able to fully recover future rental costs,
and therefore appropriate cost provisions have been made. It is anticipated that the provision carried forward at 30 November 2010 will be
utilised within one year.
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13 Called up share capital
The number of authorised, allotted, called up and fully paid shares is as follows:
30 November 2010
Number
£’000

			

31 May 2009
Number
£’000

Ordinary shares of 20p each
Authorised				
25,000,000

5,000

25,000,000

5,000

17,569,744

3,514

16,907,434

3,382

Allotted, called up and fully paid				

For details of options over shares of Quadnetics Group plc and the ExSOP, see note 23 of the Group financial statements.
14	share capital and reserves
The movements on equity shareholders’ funds during the period were as follows:
		
Called up
Share
		
share
premium
		 capital
account
		£’000
£’000
At 1 June 2009		
3,382
Profit after tax for the period		
–
Dividends paid (note 4)		–
Credit in relation to
share-based payments		–
Closing down of Quadnetics Group
Employee Share Scheme		–
Issue of shares to ExSOP		
132
Repayments of loan re ExSOP		
–
At 30 November 2010		

3,514

Merger
reserve
£’000

Other
reserves
£’000

Retained
earnings
£’000

Total
£’000

14,851
–
–

9,565
–
–

(2,486)
–
–

5,698
1,509
(1,669)

31,010
1,509
(1,669)

–

–

–

249

249

–
868
–

–
–
–

3,209
(3,029)
188

–
(1,166)
–

3,209
(3,195)
188

15,719

9,565

(2,118)

4,621

31,301

Cumulative goodwill written off directly to the profit and loss account at 30 November 2010 was £593,000 (31 May 2009: £593,000).
The consolidated result attributable to the shareholders of Quadnetics Group plc for the period includes a profit of £1,509,000 (12 months ended
31 May 2009: £833,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. Quadnetics Group plc has taken advantage of the
legal dispensation under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 allowing it not to publish a separate profit and loss account.
15 Contingent liabilities
The Company has agreed, in some instances jointly with subsidiary companies, to guarantee borrowings, annual operating lease rentals and
performance bonds amounting to £1.5 million at 30 November 2010 (31 May 2009: £1.4 million).
16 Capital commitments
At 30 November 2010 capital commitments not provided for in these financial statements amounted to £nil (31 May 2009: £nil).
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17 Operating lease commitments
The Company is committed to making operating lease payments during the next year as follows:
				
30 November			
31 May
		
Land and		
2010
Land and		
2009
buildings
Other
Total
buildings
Other
Total
		
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
£’000
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year
Within two to five years
In excess of five years		

–
–
27

–
7
–

–
7
27

–
27
20

22
56
–

22
83
20

27

7

34

47

78

125

18 Pension commitments
Employees of the Company are members of the defined contribution section of a defined benefit pension scheme (the Quadrant Group plc
Retirement Benefit Scheme) and two defined contribution schemes operated by the Group. For further details of the Quadrant Group plc
Retirement Benefit Scheme, see note 29 of the Group financial statements.
Defined contribution schemes
Contributions made by the Company to the defined contribution section of the Quadrant Group plc Retirement Benefit Scheme amount to
£63,000 in the period (12 months ended 31 May 2009: £42,000).
In addition, the Company’s total expense for other defined contribution pension schemes during the period was £242,000 (12 months ended
31 May 2009: £90,000).
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Principal Subsidiaries

The principal subsidiaries and divisions within the Group during the
period were as follows:
Quadrant Security Group Limited
Design, installation, maintenance and management of advanced integrated
CCTV and security systems
www.qsg.co.uk
3 Attenborough Lane
Chilwell
Nottingham NG9 5JN
Tel: +44 (0) 115 925 2521
Axis 6, Rhodes Way
Radlett Road
Watford
Hertfordshire WD24 4TP
Tel: +44 (0) 1923 211550
9 Hadrian Court
Team Valley Industrial Estate
Gateshead
Tyne and Wear NE11 0XW
Tel: +44 (0) 191 487 2342
SSS Management Services Limited
Total security outsourcing support and management services to retail and
multi-site customers
www.sss-support.co.uk
Shannon House
245 Coldharbour Lane
Aylesford
Kent ME20 7NS
Tel: +44 (0) 1622 798200
Synectic Systems Group Limited
Design and development of advanced surveillance technology, operating
through the three divisions shown below:
www.synx.com
Synectics House
3-4 Broadfield Close
Sheffield S8 0XN
Tel: +44 (0) 114 255 2509
Synectics – Network Systems
Developers of integrated software solutions and products for complex
security and surveillance networks
www.synx.com
Synectics House
3-4 Broadfield Close
Sheffield S8 0XN
Tel: +44 (0) 114 255 2509

Synectics – Industrial Systems
Specialist manufacturer of CCTV equipment and systems for extreme or
hazardous environments
www.synx.com
The Flarepath
Elsham Wold
Brigg
North Lincolnshire DN20 0SP
Tel: +44 (0) 1652 688908
Synectics – Mobile Systems
Development and supply of CCTV systems for bus manufacturers
and operators
www.synx.com
Unit 4
Wyrefields
Poulton-le-Fylde
Lancashire FY6 8JX
Tel: +44 (0) 1253 891222
Advanced imaging systems and radio frequency technology for the defence
and private sectors
www.synx.com
Black Barn
The Mythe Business Centre
Tewkesbury
Gloucestershire GL20 6EA
Tel: +44 (0) 1684 295807
Synectic Systems, Inc.
Developers of integrated software solutions and products for complex
security and surveillance networks
www.synx.com
4180 Via Real, Suite A
Carpinteria
California 93013
USA
Tel: 00 1 805 745 1920

81

82

Quadnetics Group plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2010

www.quadnetics.com
Stock code: QDG

Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that an Annual General Meeting of Quadnetics
Group plc will be held at Arbuthnot House, 20 Ropemaker Street,
London, EC2Y 9AR on 20th April 2011 at 10.00 a.m. for the following
purposes:
Ordinary Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions as
Ordinary Resolutions:
1.

To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and Audited
Accounts for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010.

2.

To declare a final dividend for the 18 months ended 30th November
2010 of 4.5p per Ordinary share to be paid on 9 May 2011 to
members whose names appear on the register of members at the
close of business on 18 March 2011.

3.

To re-elect as a Director DJ Coghlan who, being eligible, submits
himself for re-election.

4.

To re-elect as a Director SW Coggins who, being eligible, submits
himself for re-election.

5.

To reappoint KPMG Audit Plc as auditors to hold office until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to authorise
the Directors to set their remuneration.

Special Business
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolutions.
Resolution 6 will be proposed as an Ordinary Resolution and Resolutions
7 and 8 as Special Resolutions:
6.

That, in substitution for the existing general authorities granted at
the last Annual General Meeting of the Company, in accordance
with section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act’), the Directors
be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to
exercise all powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company
or to grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares
in the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,159,604
(being approximately 33% of the present issued share capital
of the Company) provided that this authority (unless previously
revoked or renewed) shall expire on the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing of this
resolution save that the Company may before such expiry make an
offer or agreement which would or might require such shares to be
allotted or rights to subscribe for or convert securities into shares
to be granted after such expiry and the Directors may allot shares
and grant rights to subscribe or convert securities into shares in
pursuance of such offer or agreement as if the authority conferred
hereby had not expired.

7.

That,
(1) Conditionally upon the passing of Resolution 6 and in
substitution for all existing powers, in accordance with section
570 of the Act, the Directors be and are hereby given power
to allot equity securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act)
for cash pursuant to the authority conferred by Resolution 6
and be empowered pursuant to section 573 of the Act to sell
Ordinary shares (as defined in section 560 of the Act) held by
the Company as treasury shares (as defined in section 724 of
the Act) for cash as if section 561(1) of the Act did not apply
to any such allotment or sale provided that this power shall be
limited to allotment of equity securities and the sale of treasury
shares:
a)

in connection with or pursuant to an offer by way of
rights, open offer or other pre-emptive offer in favour of
the existing holders of Ordinary shares in the capital of
the Company and other persons entitled to participate
therein in proportion (as nearly as may be) to such holders’
holdings of such shares (or, as appropriate, to the numbers
of shares which such other persons are for these purposes
deemed to hold) subject only to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary
or expedient to deal with fractional entitlements or
legal problems under the laws of any territory or the
requirements of any recognised regulatory body or stock
exchange; and

b) (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) of this
proviso) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £175,697,
being approximately 5% of the Company’s present issued
share capital
and the power hereby granted shall expire on the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the
passing of this Resolution save that the said power shall allow
and enable the Directors to make an offer or agreement before
the expiry of that power which would or might require equity
securities to be allotted or treasury shares to be sold after
such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities or sell
treasury shares in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if
the power conferred hereby had not expired.
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That, the Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
authorised pursuant to section 701 of the Act to make one or more
market purchases (as defined in section 693(4) of the Act) of its
Ordinary shares of 20p each on such terms and in such manner as
the Directors shall determine, provided that:
(1) The maximum number of Ordinary shares hereby authorised
to be acquired is 1,756,974 (representing 10% of the present
issued Ordinary share capital of the Company);

Our Financials

Notes:
1. Further to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations
2001 only those shareholders registered in the register of members
of the Company as at 6.00 p.m. on 18 April 2011 shall be entitled to
attend or vote at this meeting in respect of the number of shares
registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries on the
register after this time will be disregarded in determining the rights
of any person to attend or vote at the meeting.
2.

Any member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting may (unless they have, pursuant to article 89 of the
Company’s articles of association, nominated someone else to
enjoy such a right, in which case only the person so nominated may
exercise the right) appoint a proxy (who need not be a member)
to attend or vote instead of him. A shareholder may appoint more
than one proxy in relation to the Annual General Meeting provided
that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a
different share or shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need
not be a shareholder of the Company. A proxy form which may
be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions
accompanies this notice. A member submitting a proxy is not
precluded from attending the meeting and voting if they wish to
do so. To be effective, proxy forms and the power of attorney or
other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a notarially
certified copy of such power of authority, must be received at the
office of the Registrars of the Company, Capita Registrars, PXS,
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU, not less than
48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting,
or any adjournment thereof.

3.

Copies of the Directors’ service agreements will be available for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal
working business hours on each business day and will be available
for inspection on the day of the Annual General Meeting for
15 minutes prior to and during the continuance of the meeting.

4.

In the case of joint holdings, the vote of the senior holder shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the other joint holders, whether in
person or by proxy. For this purpose, seniority shall be deemed by
the order of the names of the holders as entered in the Company’s
Register of Members in respect of relevant joint holdings.

(2) The minimum price which may be paid for such shares is 20p
per share (exclusive of all expenses);
(3) The maximum price which may be paid for such shares is, in
respect of a share contracted to be purchased on any day,
an amount (exclusive of expenses) equal to 5% above the
average middle market quotations for an Ordinary share of
the Company as derived from the AIM Appendix to the Daily
Official List of the London Stock Exchange on the five dealing
days immediately preceding the day on which the share is
contracted to be purchased;
(4) The power hereby granted shall expire on the conclusion of the
next Annual General Meeting of the Company after the passing
of this Resolution or, if earlier, on 31st December 2012 provided
that the Company may make a contract to purchase its
Ordinary shares under the authority hereby granted prior to the
expiry of such authority which will or may be executed wholly
or partly after the expiry of such authority, and may make a
purchase of its Ordinary shares in pursuance of such contract.

By Order of the Board

NC Poultney
Secretary
4 March 2011



Registered office
Haydon House
5 Alcester Road, Studley
Warwickshire B80 7AN
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Welcome to Quadnetics

Quadnetics Group plc is a leader in the development, design, integration and
management of advanced surveillance technology and security networks.
We are a UK company listed on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) of the London
Stock Exchange with 400 employees in the UK, the United States, the Middle East
and the Far East.
We operate in all of the leading surveillance markets: urban, offshore and adverse area (oil,
gas and chemical), casinos, military, banking, retail, transport (buses and trains) and prisons.
We are active in many high security programmes throughout the world.

 Innovating
	We develop specialist application software, control systems and surveillance products that support the
needs of our clients. We invest our research and development expertise in understanding our clients’
unique requirements and deliver innovative surveillance systems that satisfy the requirements to protect
their critical infrastructures today and in the future.

 Integrating
	Within the security industry, integration and what it means to offer an ‘integrated’ solution has evolved, as
available technologies and their applications have developed. Our award-winning SynergyTM command
and control system with its intuitive graphical user interface delivers true integration of multiple systems
including CCTV, intruder alarms, access control, fire alarms and process control. We aim to be at the
forefront of this innovation with our Synectics Technology Centre leading the way. We see integration as
more than a technical systems engineering task – we offer business integration to our clients covering
the full spectrum from consultancy, through systems design, installation, maintenance, support and
complete outsourced managed services.

 Protecting
	The safeguarding of people, property, cash and assets in critical infrastructure environments is our
core business.

Our vision is:

Our mission is:

To become a leading global supplier of integrated
surveillance and security systems which are a
fundamental part of our customers’ operations.

To become the trusted brand in our key global
market segments so that we become ‘first
choice providers’ of reliable and valuable security
management solutions.
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www.quadnetics.com

Annual Report and Accounts
for the 18 months ended 30 November 2010
Stock code: QDG

